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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of
China New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2024 (the "Year").

The Company is a closed-ended investment company established on
1 February 2010. By investing substantially in both private and public
enterprises within a diversified portfolio supported by the new economies
of Greater China, the Company is devoted to achieving long-term capital
appreciation for professional investors.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the Year, the Company maintained a medium to long-term
investment strategy in both public and private equities. The Company
held one investment in a Hong Kong-listed company, three investments
in private equity securities, one limited partnership fund and one open-
ended fund as of 31 December 2024. One of our major investments is in
the financial printing sector focusing on the Hong Kong IPO market. The
Company reported net loss attributable to shareholders of HK$28,978,531
during the Year, which consisted of the net change in fair value loss of
HK$17,515,762 taken on the investment positions in the portfolio.

The investment performance of the Company during the Year was
affected by significant economic challenges in the Chinese economy,
as well as increasing political risks in the Hong Kong and China stock
markets. As at 31 December 2024, the Company reported an audited net
asset value of approximately HK$0.05 per share. The net loss is mainly
attributable to net realised loss of HK$3,541,193 and net unrealised loss
of HK$13,974,569 on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
mainly as a result of recent volatility in the Hong Kong stock market. The
Company will continue to monitor its investments cautiously in view of the
recent uncertain market conditions.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

Throughout the Year, the investment market faced numerous significant
challenges. The ongoing concerns in the Chinese property market
significantly impacted the pace of China’s economic recovery. However,
recent policy measures showed signs of stabilization, with home sales
picking up towards the end of the 2024. Moreover, the prolonged period
of high interest rates in the United States (the “U.S.”) also presented
further economic challenges. The United States Federal Reserve Board
(the "U.S. Federal Reserve”) announced another 25 basis points cut to
the federal funds rate in December 2024, bringing borrowing costs to the
4.25%-4.5% range. The market is particularly awaiting further potential
interest rate cuts. Additionally, the U.S. presidential election at the end of
2024, which resulted in Donald Trump being re-elected and assuming the
presidency, significantly impacted U.S.-China relations, directly influencing
the performance of the Hong Kong stock market and the broader
investment market.

In 2024, China faced significant economic challenges, including issues in
the real estate sector and fluctuating global trade conditions. According
to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the country’s gross domestic
product (“GDP") for 2024 reached RMB134,908.4 billion, representing
a 5.0% increase compared to the corresponding period in the previous
year. Breaking down the quarterly GDP growth rates for 2024, the first
quarter saw an increase of 5.3%. This was followed by 4.7% in the second
quarter, 4.6% in the third quarter, and 5.4% in the fourth quarter, on a
year-over-year basis, reflecting the ongoing economic adjustments and
challenges.

Throughout the year 2024, the Hang Seng Index experienced a notable
increase of 17.7%. More impressively, the Hang Seng China Enterprises
Index surged by 26.4%, outperforming the broader Hang Seng Index.
This robust performance highlights the strength and resilience of the
Chinese enterprises sector. As of December 2024, the U.S. Federal Reserve
maintained its interest rate within the 5.25% to 5.50% range following an
increase in July. Throughout the year, the growth rate of inflation, which
had previously reached a 40-year high, showed signs of deceleration.
Market participants had anticipated potential rate cuts, with the first
reduction occurring in September 2024. By the end of the year, the U.S.
Federal Reserve implemented further rate adjustments, positioning the
federal funds rate between 4.25% and 4.50%. These measures were
closely monitored by investors, influencing market expectations and
economic projections.

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2024
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The Company’s strategic focus is to invest in listed securities over short to
medium term, with an ongoing commitment to identifying investment
opportunities in high-potential listed companies. Concurrently, the
Company is dedicated to long-term investments in private equity
securities and other unlisted assets. The Company had made investments
in one listed company, two funds, and three private equity securities.
This diversified investment approach reflects the Company’s belief that
incorporating funds and private equity within the portfolio can mitigate
risks while potentially yielding greater returns over the long term. The
Company remains vigilant in seeking additional investment opportunities,
including unlisted investments, to enhance value for our investors and
shareholders.

Moving forward, the Company will continue to execute its investment
strategy, with a primary focus on Greater China and other significant
global markets. Leveraging the expertise of our highly skilled investment
and risk management team, we are confident in our ability to identify
and seize valuable investment opportunities. Our objective is to maximize
returns for our esteemed shareholders, ensuring sustainable and long-term
growth.

Chen Shengjie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis
IR wm e AT

INVESTMENT REVIEW

The Company held six investments as of 31 December 2024, comprising
one investment in a Hong Kong-listed company, three investments in
private equity securities, one limited partnership fund and one open-ended
fund.

Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule 21.12 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company discloses its
ten largest investments and all individual investments with value exceeding
5% of the Company’s gross assets with brief description of the investee
companies as follows:

At 31 December 2024

Listed Equity Security - Hong Kong

RELE

AATR20245F 12 A3 BEAENEERE 8
REE—EEB LT ARIKRE  =ELERE
BERE  —EERAEES R —ERMAA
@ o

RIEEEMERXZMBR AR (THRRM])FE
Z EMARAN(T EHARRD) FH 2112 1%FTHA R
EARAEEE T ESARE MAE ERIE
BERBARRREES%NKRE  ERARE
RAEWER AT -

720245128 31H

L EEEE &

Dividend % of
Proportion Netasset received/ gross
of investee’s Unrealised attributable  receivable assets
Place of Particular of issued capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation shares held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
BER
BaEfRE KR ANE REREE fRDF
ikt LA9ER &/ EFEE  SH/RM BeE
FREADER Bl Rt Al S (3! (§#) B RE k1
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(K1) (Wit2)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TAL TAL TAL T
(8)  Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited  The Cayman lslands 22,000 0.00% 4 3 (1) HKS0.01 - 0.00
ordinary shares of milion
HK$0.025 each
BRRR T ARERAT REHE 20008 10,000
BRAE00SET o
ZEBR
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Private Equity Security — British Virgin Islands

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S BT

REREES -RBEXHE

Dividend % of
Proportion Netasset  received/ gross
of investee’s Unrealised attributable  receivable assets
Place of Particular of issued capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation shares held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
BER
e *E5 AR MEE RERR
FREET  ARER &/ EiEgE  2H/EN fgg
FRELNIEE ALY Rt 6l BA i (E#) B ks (k1
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Fst1) (ki)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TiEn T TR Tz
(b} Gransing Financial Group Limited Briish Virgin Islands 64 shares of 18.08% 46,377 6,627 (39,750) HK$14.51 - 10.18
USDT each millon
AREHEEERAT ABRAEE 64k 14,510,000
BREEIXT AT
bai
Private Equity Securities — Hong Kong REREEZES—FE
Dividend % of
Proportion Netasset received/ gross
of investee’s Unrealised attributable  receivable assets
Place of Particular of issued (apital Market ~ gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation shares held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
BER
BafRE 3 AR MEE  RRRR
skt LA9ER &/ EEEE  SH/RM i (
FREATER Bl e Al 2 f (6%) B ks Bl
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(K1) (H3t2)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THAL TEL TATL Thn
() iPro Financial Press Limited Hong Kong 17,493 shares 19.97% 34,999 15,350 (19,649) HK$15.45 - 357
millon
BARRARERAT Bt 1749% 15,450,000
B
(d)  Gransing Finance Limited Hong Kong 2,779,570 shares 19.90% 16,876 213 (14,193) HK$4.52 - 418
millon
AREERRLT Bt 2779570% 4,520,000
o

FEFEEREBR AR / FiR 2024



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R W AT

Funds - Hong Kong B -F&
Dividend % of
Net asset received/ gross
Proportion Unrealised attributable receivable assets
of investee's gain/(loss) to the during of the
Name of investee Place of incorporation  capital owned Cost  Marketvalue  recognised Company the Year Company
BRFRE BER ADE MEEE AR
BEA LEER RER EfEE  Ch/EK a8g
FRENAEH i Al s e hE/ (k8 FE RE Btk
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Bst1) (Rit2)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TATL TAL T ThAL
(e)  Goldstone 1 LPF Hong Kong 43.63% 19,785 9,580 (10,205 HK$9.58 - 147
millon
Sh-HERATES B 9,580,000
AL
) SWK Dynamic OFC Hong Kong 10.59% 9947 8677 (1,270 HK$8.68 - 1333
millon
Bk 8,680,000
v
At 31 December 2023 72023 12H31H
Listed Equity Securities - Hong Kong LR EE BB
Netasset/  Dividend % of
Proportion (liability) ~ received/ gross
of investee's Unrealised attributable  receivable assets
Place of Particular of capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe during of the
Name of investee incorporation issued shares held owned Cost value  recognised Company theyear ~ Company
BER
Bef *ER A8 REEE DT
FRERT  RELE hg/  EREEE/ B/ BeE
FRENTER RaUIZARE Rt EARA 2 [ (B8 (BR)FE  BURE AAt
(Note 4) (Note 3)
(Kit4) (H3t3)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THEL T TAL TAx
Tasty Concepts Holding Limited The Cayman Islands 6,600,000 343% 1320 1848 528 HKS(0.66) - 194
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 millon
each
BZHERARAT RERE 6,600,000% (660,000)
SREB0IAT B
LERR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S BT

Netasset/  Dividend % of
Proportion (liability) ~ received/ gross
of investee's Unrealised attributable  receivable assets
Place of Particular of capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe during of the
Name of investee incorporation issued shares held owned Cost value  recognised Company theyear  Company
BE3
L) *ER KNG REEE DT
FRERT  RELE hg/  EREEE/ B/ agE
FREATER AL EE Rt EARA 2 (32! i) (BRFE  BURE At
(Note 4) (Note 3)
(Hit4) (Ki3t3)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THETL TAL TAL TAL
Hanvey Group Holdings Limited The Cayman Islands 2,310,000 140% 627 739 112 HK$0.52 - 078
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 millon
each
EREEARERLA RERE 2310,000% 520,000
BREB0IAT B
LERR
Lerado Financial Group Company Limited ~ Bermuda 3,100,000 135% 779 657 (122) HK$8.98 - 0.69
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 milion
each
BieRERERAT ARE 3,100000% 8,980,000
GREEET B
LERR
China New Consumption Group Limited ~ The Cayman Islands 2,700,000 067% 505 524 19 HK$0.70 - 055
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 million
each
PR RREEARAT RERE 27000005 700,000
SREELONATR R
ZERR
Private Equity Security - British Virgin Islands REREZRS - REELHE
Dividend % of
Proportion Netasset received/ gross
of investees Unrealised attributable  receivable assets
Particular of capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee Place of incorporation issued shares held owned Cost value  recognised Company year  Company
283 REER
Eaf i3 & ADE B/ #ARE
fiscEf  RELH i/ B i fgE
FRENAEH BaLiATRE RtEE  EARLA B i (§#) BERE ks ARl
(Note 3) (Note 4)
(h3t3) (Hizt4)
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn Thn
Gransing Financial Group Limited British Virgin Islands 64 shares 18.08% 4377 9,724 (36,653) HK$20.90 - 1021
0f USD1 each millon
AREHEERRAT ABRAER 64k 20,900,000
BRAEIET B
LA
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Private Equity Securities - Hong Kong

REREES -TE

Dividend % of
Proportion Netasset  received/ gross
of investee's Unrealised attributable  receivable assets
Particular of capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Narme of investee Place of incorporation issued shares held owned Cost value  recognised Company year  Company
BER REEE
A *E5 L VA 7.9 %
FRoEr  RELA hs/  ALAEE i e
FRELAEE ARHLE G- v 1] A [} (6%) EERE RE ARl
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Rizt1) (3t2)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T TER T TEn
iPro Financial Press Limited Hong Kong 17,493 shares 19.97% 34999 17,602 (17397) HK$25.60 - 1848
million
ESARERAT B 174931k 25,600,000
AT
Gransing Finance Limited Hong Kong 2,779,570 shares 19.90% 16,876 8,103 (8773) HK$12.90 - 851
millon
ARGERRAT B 2778570%% 12,900,000
AL
Funds — Hong Kong He—-FF&
Proportion Dividend % of
of Net asset received/ gross
investee's Unrealised attributable receivable assets
capital gain/(loss) to the during of the
Name of investee Place of incorporation owned Cost Marketvalue  recognised Company the year Company
3 REEE
i %85 A7 Bk bA0F
‘ \ 5807 ‘ . I/ G By sEE
FREATEM BRulZAR BRLA AR M (B8) BERE RE BAl
(the 4) (the 3)
(Hzta) (Bi3)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TERL TEn Tt T
Goldstone 1 LPF Hong Kong 59.32% 23,748 16,858 (6,890) HK$16.86 - 17.70
million
th-HARABES (30 16,860,000
BT
SWK Dynamic OFC Hong Kong 1221% 12,163 10,285 (1,878) HK$10.28 - 10.80
million
30 10,280,000
BT
Notes: BT
(1) The unrealised gain/(loss) recognised represented the changes in fair value of the (1) ERRAEENE (BB EAFESEREZR

respective investments during the Year.
(2) The calculation of net assets/(liability) attributable to the Company is based on the

latest published interim/annual reports of the respective investments at the end of each
reporting period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The calculation of net assets/(liability) attributable to the Company is based on the
latest financial information/statements of the respective investments at the end of each
reporting period.

The unrealised gain/(loss) recognised represented the changes in fair value of the
respective investments during the year ended 31 December 2023.

A brief description of the business and financial information of the

investments is as follows:

(a

Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited (“Strong Petrochemical”) is a
Hong Kong-based investment holding company principally engaged
in the trading of oil products. The unaudited loss attributable to
shareholders of Strong Petrochemical for the six months ended 30
June 2024 was approximately HK$8,750,000 and the unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Strong Petrochemical as at
30 June 2024 was approximately HK$1,284,433,000. The trading
of shares of Strong Petrochemical has been suspended since 31
December 2024. Strong Petrochemical resumed the crude oil trading
business and made headway to enter the oil and gas development
and production sector. Strong Petrochemical will proactively seek for
business opportunities. The fair value of the investment in Strong
Petrochemical is based on quoted market bid prices.

Gransing Financial Group Limited (”Gransing Financial”) is principally
engaged in provision of quality brokerage, corporate finance, asset
management, money lending and financial adviser services to
institutional and individual investors in Hong Kong and Mainland
China through its subsidiaries. With the enhancement of artificial
intelligence (“A.l.") technology, Gransing Financial launched
several new services including the online account opening services
for new customers in Hong Kong and China. Moreover, by the
help of advanced intelligent technology, Gransing Financial’s A.l.
analyst would serve their clients with stock monitoring, investment
strategies and stock scoring services. All the above would improve
Gransing Financial’s operational efficiency and earn more new
potential clients. The fair value of the investment in Gransing
Financial is based on valuation by independent valuer.

iPro Financial Press Limited ("iPro”) is principally engaged in
financial printing services, production of announcements such as
IPO prospectus and financial reports, and provision of venues for
financial related forums. The fair value of the investment in iPro is
based on valuation by independent valuer.

== &= = =4 B A

B AT
ARBEEEE/(AE) FENREBESERERS
BERROBIIBER, BRTHE -

CHRRER W (FE)EHZE2023F12 A31
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{tI]) R—HBRIPREBNREE
RAR TEZNEHHERES - #HZE
20246 A30H LA - /BAHRE
TR ER 15 R A % B 40 /5 8,750,000
MBI MAR202466 A30H - BIKA
M TIRREEREEZEEFENAR
1,284,433,000% 7T ° /8B A B TH A
DBE224F12A3HREEIEFES - /8
BEBECTIRERBE XL WiEE
AHRRARFAREREESRSD - BKA
Mt T ERSZS R - B IRA R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gransing Finance Limited (“Gransing Finance”) is engaged in the
provision of money lending. Gransing Finance is held by Gransing
Financial which is the largest shareholder of Gransing Finance. The
fair value of the investment in Gransing Finance is based on valuation
by independent valuer.

Goldstone 1 LPF (“Goldstone 17), is a limited partnership fund.
Goldstone 1 seeks to achieve maximum capital appreciation over
the life of the limited partnership fund through equity investments,
specifically, investments in IPOs on securities to be listed on the Stock
Exchange and in private placements by companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. The fair value of the investment in Goldstone 1 is based
on net asset value.

SWK Dynamic OFC (“SWK") is private open-ended fund company
with variable capital. The strategy of SWK is long-biased focusing
on Hong Kong and China equity market. The fair value of the
investment in SWK is based on net asset value.

The top investments with realised gain and loss for the Year are

(d)

(e)

(f)

BREEARAR(TBEREEDHER
HREER - BREEDERSBIEFR
T ABEKREENRARRE - REKREER
BRENRFEDERB L EEMZGE
sh—REARGEES(2A—RDA
—EFERABET A REEDSB
B E BRI RRER KRB M
MBS ERAMEE MBR LT
NAENLEERE  RERABESHNE
EFEHNERRANEREE R
A—SRRENRAFEDENEEFEM

H o
>t

SWK Dynamic OFC ([SWK]) Th—K#EH
AEEARNLARBRAEE A A 2 SWK
BB R RIRAES RPREIRETS ©
MRSWKEIRE A TEDEREEFER

=
e

RAFEBRGEER WG MEBZ ZRRRER

summarised as below: MmanT
The top realised gain for the Year TEERAE SR WG
Name of investment Realised gain
REER E# B R
HK$'000
FHET
China New Consumption Group Limited HREFEEEREBRA A 105
Top three realised loss for the Year TEE=ZRERRER
Name of investment Realised loss
REER E#BEE
HK$'000
FHET
Tasty Concepts Holding Limited B ZWRERERA R 554
Hanvey Group Holdings Limited HREEBZERER QA 373
Goldstone 1 LPF A HARERES 296
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

The Company has maintained a sufficient cash position which will allow it
to capture opportunities with promising returns in both listed and private
equities.

As at 31 December 2024, the gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equities, was nil (31 December 2023: Nil). As at
31 December 2024, the Company has no margin payables to brokers (31
December 2023: Nil).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
Year (2023: Nil).

CHARGES ON COMPANY’S ASSET AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had no pledged Hong Kong listed
securities to secure the margin payables to the brokers (31 December
2023: Nil).

There were no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On the listing date on 6 January 2011, the Company completed a share
placement and a total of 303,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
were placed at a price of HK$1.03 per share for a total cash consideration,
excluding the related issue expenses, for approximately HK$312.1 million.
Subsequent to the listing, the Company had acquired additional capital
by completion of rights issue and placing of new shares under general
mandate. As at 31 December 2024, the share capital of the Company
comprises of 1,319,700,274 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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EQUITY FUND RAISING

There was no equity fund raising activity by the Company for the Year,
nor was there any unutilized proceeds brought forward from any issue of
equity securities made in previous financial years.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2024, the Company made no capital expenditure or
any other commitments (31 December 2023: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the Year, the Company did not acquire or dispose of any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (2023: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company had six investments as of 31 December 2024, comprising of
equity securities listed in Hong Kong, private equities, limited partnership
fund and open-ended fund. The largest investment held by the Company
was in the financial printing sector focusing on the Hong Kong IPO market.

The rest of the net proceeds gained will be applied by the Board and the
Investment Manager in making investments according to the investment
objective, policies and restrictions of the Company and the requirements
of the articles of association of the Company, the Listing Rules and the
investment management agreement. Any proceeds not deployed are
placed in bank deposits or invested in money market instruments or money
market funds.

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had five full-time employees
(31 December 2023: eight full-time employees). All of the Company’s
employees were based in Hong Kong.

The Company establishes its remuneration policy by making reference to
the prevailing market conditions and a performance-based reward system.
The policy is periodically reviewed. Apart from mandatory provident
fund, salaries increment, discretionary bonuses and share options may
be awarded to employees according to the assessment of individual
performance.

The total remuneration cost incurred by the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$2,738,910 (31 December 2023: HK$4,132,184).

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

The Board believes that foreign exchange risks are minimal as the
Company mainly uses the Hong Kong dollar to carry out its business
transactions.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has been no material event affecting the Company since the end
of reporting year. Details of significant events (if any) occurring after 31
December 2024 are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee (the "Audit Committee”)
established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Sze Tak Chi (being the chairman with professional
qualifications in accountancy), Mr. Sui Fuxiang and Mr. Tong Yun Lung.

The summary of duties and works of the Audit Committee is set out in the
"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board hereby announces that the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 27 May 2025 to Friday 30 May 2025, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM"), all transfers of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-04, 33/F,,
Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 26 May 2025.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (“Mr. Chan"”), aged 61, has been appointed as
an executive Director since 1 June 2013. Mr. Chan is the representative of
Sinolink Securities (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed
person to carry out type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. Mr. Chan obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business Administration
of The University of South Florida in the United States of America. Mr.
Chan is experienced in dealing in securities, fund management, corporate
management, corporate finance and managing listed investment
companies under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Chan is currently
an executive director of China Innovation Investment Limited (1217.HK),
China Investment and Finance Group Limited (1226. HK), Capital Realm
Financial Holdings Group Limited (204.HK), Capital VC Limited (2324. HK)
Goldstone Investment Group Limited (901.HK) and Goldstone Capital
Group Limited (1160.HK), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an executive director of National
Investments Fund Limited (in liquidation) (1227.HK) before the winding up
order was granted against the company on 8 February 2021. He was also
an executive director of Core Economy Investment Group Limited (339.HK)
from January 2021 to June 2021.

Goldstone Investment Group Limited was ordered to be wound up by the
Hong Kong court and provisional liquidator has been appointed. Mr. Chan
confirmed that he is not one of the respondents of the winding-up order
nor a party to such winding-up proceedings and is not aware of any actual
or potential claim that has been or will be made against him because of the
above. He also confirmed that he has no knowledge at the present time of
the possible outcome of the winding-up order. Further details are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 30 May 2023.

Profiles of Directors
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ES=EF

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Shengjie (“Mr. Chen”), aged 63, had been appointed as a non-
executive Director and the Chairman of the Company since 16 October
2024. Mr. Chen graduated from Capital University of Economics and
Business ( & #PA8E Z 5 K2 (formerly known as Beijing Finance & Trade
College) with a bachelor degree in business management. Mr. Chen is also
a registered accountant in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr.
Chen has over 30 years of experience in accounting and financial affairs
and is currently the chairman of the board of FEER @ (1L R) b EEE
B R 28] since 2024. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chen served as
the deputy head of the Commerce and Trade Audit Department (7 & 7))
under the National Audit Office of the PRC, the assistant to the general
manager of China National Nonferrous Materials Corporation (FEl 5 &
& B M K48 2 7)), the chief accountant of China Chengtong Holdings
Company (/R Bl 3838 15 i 5= @ A BR A 7)), the general manager of China
Chengtong Resources Recycling Development & Utilization Company
(7R [ 38 i B R B A R 2 R A R 8)), the chairman of Zhongchang Big
Data Corporation Limited (7 & X U4& & 0 B R 2 8], formerly known
as Zhongchang Marine Company Limited (F £ /88 R D AR A7), a
company then listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), and the general
manager of Wuhua Real Estate Corporation Limited (13 & 2 AR A
A]). In addition, Mr. Chen has served as directors and senior management
of several listed companies in Hong Kong, including being a non-executive
director of China Chengtong Development Group Limited (217.HK)
between 2003 and 2005, an executive director and the vice-chairman of
China Daye Non-Ferrous Metals Mining Limited (formerly known as China
National Resources Development Holdings Limited) (661.HK) between
2004 and 2007, an executive director of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited
(formerly known as Reorient Group Limited (376.HK) between 2011 and
2015 and the chief financial officer of Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd
(2608.HK) between 2018 and 2020.)
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Mr. Choi Koon Ming (“Mr. Choi"”), aged 56, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 8 February 2022. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the University of British Columbia. He has over 26 years of
experience in the financing activities of corporate and property mortgage,
real estate development and property investment, as well as over 24 years
of experience in financial services. Mr. Choi has been an executive director
of Sunwah Kingsway since 2000 and the chief executive officer of Sunwah
Kingsway since 2010. Mr. Choi is also an independent non-executive
director of EPS Creative Health Technology Group Limited (3860.HK), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 2021. He
was also a director and chief executive officer of Sunwah International
Limited (“SIL"), which was listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX").
SIL was privatized and delisted from the TSX on 14 June 2021. Mr. Choi is
a brother of Mr. Choi Koon Shum, one of the substantial shareholders of
Sunwah Kingsway and the Company with the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

Ms. Xiao Ruimei (“Ms. Xiao"), aged age 60, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 8 July 2022. Ms. Xiao graduated from Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor of Laws in 1985. Ms. Xiao received a
Master of Business Administration from Guanghua School of Management
in Peking University in 2003. From 1999 to 2000, Ms. Xiao was a Senior
Media Visiting Scholar at Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University. Ms. Xiao was a visiting scholar at the School of International and
Public Affairs, Columbia University, United States of America from 2017 to
2018. From 1985 to 2001, Ms. Xiao served as director and editorial board
member of the Economic Department of China News Service. From 2001
to 2011, Ms. Xiao was the founder, deputy editor, and vice president of 4%
I ZX R (Economic Observers), and vice chairman of A& BB SR E G R
72 7] (Economic Observers Newspaper Company Limited). Since 2011, Ms.
Ms. Xiao received the " A B % & 82 " 5F 5% 2 (" China News Award" Critic
Award) in 1997.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tong Yun Lung (“Mr. Tong”) aged 62, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 18 July 2022. He is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee as well as a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Tong
obtained a bachelor’s degree from the Department of Chinese Language
in Nanjing University in the PRC in 1983. Mr. Tong has over 10 years of
administrative experience in Government of the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). From 1983 to 1990, he was engaged in an administrative
role in the General Office of the Yunnan Provincial Government of the
PRC. From 1990 to 1997, he was transferred to the General Office of the
Guangdong Provincial Government of the PRC. In 1997, he founded E &
BEFAE X AR A A (Guangdong Dongfanghong Industrial Co., Ltd.).
In 2020, he joined China Far Vision (HK) Think Tank Limited and is currently
serving as its chairman.

Mr. Sze Tak Chi (“Mr. Sze”) aged 57, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 15 June 2023. He is the
chairman of Audit Committee as well as a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Sze
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s
degree in Engineering in 1996 and from the Baruch College, City
University of New York with a master’s degree in business administration
(accountancy) in 2004. Mr. Sze is a holder of Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA), a Certified Public Accountant of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA) in the United States and is Accredited in
Business Valuation (ABV) by the AICPA. Besides, he is a Registered
Business Valuer registered with the Hong Kong Business Valuation Forum.
He has also passed papers 1, 7, and 11 of the licensing examination of
securities and futures intermediaries of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute in December 2006. Mr. Sze has extensive experience
in conducting in-depth company and industry research, and financial
analyses for valuation purposes. Mr. Sze worked for investment banks,
a hedge fund company and a tax consulting firm in the United States,
primarily engaged in performing financial analyses and assessing taxation
impacts on entities such as financial institutions, utility companies and
power plants. Previously, he worked in the field of Civil Engineering and
Environmental Engineering in Hong Kong for 5 years. Mr. Sze is also
experienced in compliance of listed companies and have participated in a
number of listings in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Sui Fuxiang, aged 51, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 15 June 2023. He is the chairman of
Remuneration Committee as well as a member of Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Sui has long been engaged
in strategic research, financial investment and business collaboration.
He has studied in a number of universities and has studied in the
international economic and trade environment, especially in the field of
equity investment. He is familiar with the economic and social conditions
of Hong Kong and Macau, and is good at analysis for macro economy, as
well as business models and cutting-edge technology research. Focusing
on new energy, new infrastructure and specialized and new fields, Mr. Sui
has organized and planned a number of developments and transactions
regarding high-end equipment production, asset management, supply
chain finance and comprehensive healthcare projects, underpinned by his
rich relevant resources and experience. Since joining CITIC Merchant Co.,
Ltd. in 2019, he has been mainly responsible for internal coordination
within the group, project development and client liaison. Mr. Sui was
a non-executive director of GTI Holdings Limited (334.HK), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from November 2019 to
October 2020, and has been an independent non-executive director of
China United Venture Investment Limited (8159.HK), a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange, from 17 August 2022 to 15 April 2024.
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and audited financial
statements of the Company for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company is an exempted limited liability company, incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 1 February 2010 for the purpose of acting as a closed-
ended investment company.

The Company is principally engaged in investing globally in both private
and publicly listed enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of the mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 6 January 2011 (the “Listing Date”). The
Company had not commenced any operation or business before the
Listing Date.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business review as required by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including risks facing by the Company,
important events affecting the Company, that have occurred since the
end of the Year, likely future development in the Company’s business can
be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report. These discussions form part of this “Report
of the Directors”.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Company for the Year are set out in the financial
statements on pages 73 to 163.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividends for the Year
(31 December 2023: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Company for the
Year is set out on page 164.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the Year are set out in the
statement of changes in equity to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act, Cap. 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$15.4 million.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital during the Year are set out in
Note 22 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not purchase, redeem or sell any of the Company’s listed
securities (including the sale of treasury shares) during the Year. As at
31 December 2024, there were no treasury shares (as defined under the
Listing Rules) held by the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Bin (Co-Chairman)
(Resigned on 17 September 2024)

Mr. Choi Chit Sze Jackson (Co-Chairman)
(Resigned on 16 October 2024)

Mr. Chen Shengjie (Chairman)
(Appointed on 16 October 2024)

Mr. Choi Koon Ming

Ms. Xiao Ruimei
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tong Yun Lung
Mr. Sze Tak Chi
Mr. Sui Fuxiang

In order to comply with the requirements of the code provision B.2.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan Cheong Yee and Mr. Choi Koon Ming shall
retire at the AGM. In addition, according to Article 34.2 of the Articles,
Mr. Chen Shengjie who was appointed by the Board on 16 October 2024
shall hold office until the AGM and then shall be subject to re-election
at the AGM. Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, Mr. Choi Koon Ming and Mr. Chen
Shengjie, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

In compliance with Rule 5.02D of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chen Shengjie
obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 5.02D of the Listing Rules on
16 October 2024 and he has confirmed that he understood his obligations
as a director of a listed issuer.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 19 to 23 of this
annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of the fee or emoluments of Directors during the Year are set out in
Note 8 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Company’s operations. The Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreement during the Year or there was not any
subsisting equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company at the
end of the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Company is devoted to promoting and maintaining the environmental
and social sustainable development. As a responsible enterprise, the
Company is in compliance with all the material relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong in terms of the environmentally friendliness,
health as well as safety and adopts effective measures, conserves energy
and reduces waste.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company’s operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and
accordingly shall comply with material relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has complied with all the material relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every Director of the
Company together with every former Director of the Company shall
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability,
action, proceeding, claim, demand, costs, damages or expenses, including
legal expenses, whatsoever which they or any of them may incur in the
execution of their office or otherwise in relation thereto. During the Year,
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance coverage had
been arranged in respect of legal action that might be taken against the
Directors and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation (if any). Each of the non-executive Directors
has been appointed for an initial fixed term of three years and shall be
eligible for re-election in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the “Investment Management Agreement” and “Lease
Agreement” mentioned in the sections headed “Exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” and “Non-Exempt Continuing Connected
Transaction” below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance, to which the Company and the controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or an entity
connected with any Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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EERHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) has an interest in any business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save the Investment Management Agreement and Potential Conflicts
of Interest respectively disclosed on pages 24 to 37 of the Report of
the Directors, the Company has not entered into any contract with any
individuals, firms or corporate entities to manage or regulate the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 1 June 2015, pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 28 May 2015.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
in issue from time to time.

The Company operates the share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Company’s operations. The eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme are full time or part time employees of the Company
(including any directors, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not, of the Company); and any business or joint venture
partners, contractors, agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers, licensees (including any
sublicensee) or distributors, landlords or tenants (including any subtenants)
of the Company or any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has
contributed or may contribute to the Company.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of shares in issue on 28 May 2021 as the Company has sought the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10%
limit under the Share Option Scheme. The total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme (including options granted but
not yet exercised and options available for issue) is 47,225,910 Shares,
representing approximately 3.58% of the total number of issued Shares
as at the date of this annual report. The Share Option Scheme will remain
in force for a period of 10 years commencing from 1 June 2015. The
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 1.5 months.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 12 May 2015, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant or grantee (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any twelve month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Where it is proposed that any
offer is to be made to a participant (or where approximate, and existing
grantee) which would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the twelve month period
up to the including the relevant date of grant to exceed such limit, such
offer and any acceptance thereof must be conditional upon shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such participant (or where appropriate,
and existing grantee) and his, her or its associated abstaining from voting.

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board, but shall not be lower than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date on which the Board approves the making
of the offer for the grant of options (the “Date of Grant”), which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share. The time of acceptance of an offer for the grant of options shall not
be later than 21 days from the Date of Grant. A non-refundable nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of
an option. There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option
Scheme for which an option must be held or the performance target which
must be achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

Vesting of the options granted may be subject to the fulfillment of vesting
conditions to be specified in the grant letters as approved by the Board.
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During the Year, there was no options granted or exercised under the
Share Option Scheme. The number of options available for grant under
the scheme mandate limit at the beginning and the end of the Year was
43,210,747.

Particulars to the Company’s Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 21
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'/OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2024, the following person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each of the
Company

FR - BEREEBRENERDKITERR
W RFEN R FERBIET R ERE T HED
RIEE IS B 543,210,747 17 ©
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Number of Number of % of issued

Capacity in shares held shares held share capital of

Name of shareholder which shares are held (Direct Interests) (Indirect Interests) the Company

e33R ] FrEROAHA ERAT S BT

BRR®ES BB REERG 2515 (EERER) (BEER) RAZHHEI

CAS International Investment Interest in controlled 315,000,000 23.87
management Company Limited corporation (Note 2)
XEHEEER (P 2)
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Approximate

Number of Number of % of issued
Capacity in shares held shares held share capital of
Name of shareholder which shares are held (Direct Interests) (Indirect Interests) the Company
FERBEE FERHER HARRAFERT
RESEYET RETER® 25145 (EEER) (BEER) REAZBAEI L
CAS International Investments Interest in controlled 315,000,000 23.87
Holdings Co., Limited corporation (Note 2)
R EEE R GEY)
China Science International Interest in controlled 315,000,000 23.87
Investment Company Limited corporation (Note 2)
XEHEEES GEY)
BRI E R ORI Interest in controlled 315,000,000 23.87
BRAA corporation (Note 2)
ZEEEEE S (BFzE2)
3k Interest in controlled 315,000,000 23.87
corporation (Note 2)
PR EEE R (BF&E2)
BE Interest in controlled 315,000,000 23.87
corporation (Note 2)
XEHEEER GEY)
Radiant Goldstone International Beneficial Owner 315,000,000 23.87
Group Limited (Note 2)
ExEEA (BFzE2)
B Beneficial Owner 190,790,000 15.00
ExEEA
Sunwah Tongfang Limited Interest in controlled 129,640,000 9.82
corporation
SR EEE R
Gold Pond International Limited Interest in controlled 129,640,000 9.82
corporation
XEHEEES
Choi Koon Shum Interest in controlled 117,898,595 8.93
corporation (Note 3)
TS ZEEEEE S (BzE3)
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Approximate

Number of Number of % of issued
Capacity in shares held shares held share capital of
Name of shareholder which shares are held (Direct Interests) (Indirect Interests) the Company
R aE B FERHER ERAT S BT
BEREE BB RERG 255 (EfEER) (BEER) REAZBAEI L
Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Interest in controlled 117,898,595 8.93
Limited corporation (Note 3)
MEEESRZERERAA XS EEEE (PBiF3E3)
Festival Developments Limited Interest in controlled 117,898,595 8.93
corporation (Note 3)
XEHEEES (FiF5E3)
Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Beneficial Owner 117,898,595 8.93
Limited (Note 3)
ExEAEA (BF&E3)
Wang Dingben Beneficial Owner 68,330,000 5.18
FTAR EmEAEA
Note: 5T -
1. As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 1,319,700,274 issued shares. 1. 2024512 A31H - AQRHAE 1,319,700,274 1%
BEITHRG -
2; To the best information, knowledge and belief of the Directors, Radiant Goldstone 2. BE SRR & N#E - Radiant Goldstone

International Group Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of CAS International
Investments Holdings Co., Limited (“CASIIH"). CASIIH is in turn wholly owned by CAS
International Investment Management Company Limited (“CASIIM”). CASIIM is owned
as to 36% by EREHXIR Bk ORI AR AT (“ERKEHL") and as to 34% by
China Science International Investment Company Limited (“CSII"). @A FH is owned as
t0 90% by Z=4##148 and CSll is owned as to 85% by Mr. % .

By To the best information, knowledge and belief of the Directors, Kingsway Lion Spur
Technology Limited (“KLSTL") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Festival Developments
Limited (“FDL"). FDL is wholly owned by Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited.
As at 31 December 2024, Mr. Choi Koon Shum was interested and/or deemed to be
interested in 56.82% of the issued share capital of Sunwah Kingsway.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Company has
not been notified by any other persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures”) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Details of related party transaction of the Company, i.e. the Investment
Management Agreement, during the Year are set out in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report and constitutes
a continuing connected transaction as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules during the Year. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the continuing connected transactions are summarised in
the sections headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” below.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company had the following continuing connected
transactions, details of which were disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Custodian Agreement

The Company had appointed Bank of Communications Trustee Limited
(the "Custodian”) as custodian since 2019. The custodian agreement with
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Custodian Agreement”)
is effective and will continue to be in force until terminated by either the
Company or the Custodian by giving the other party not less than 30 days
advance notice in writing.

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement, the Company will pay the
Custodian a monthly fee of the higher of (a) the net asset value of the
portfolio of the Company at each month equal to the rate 0.04% per
annum, or (b) HK$12,500 per month.

During the Year, the total custodian fee of HK$150,000 was paid by the
Company to the Custodian.

The Custodian is regarded as a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the service provided by the
Custodian to the Company under the Custodian Agreement constituted a
continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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Lease Agreement

The Company had signed a 26-months lease agreement for the rights
to use the office premises commencing on 1 January 2023 (the “Lease
Agreement”) with China State Ventures Group Limited (the “Landlord”), a
private company whose director is Mr. Huang Bin, the former co-chairman
and non-executive Director of the Company. Pursuant to the Lease
Agreement, the Company will pay the Landlord a monthly lease payment
(including management fee) of HK$100,000.

During the Year, the anticipated lease payment (including management
fee) was HK$1,200,000.

The Landlord is regarded as a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors anticipate that the fees
payable to the Landlord under the Lease Agreement will not exceed HK$3
million and the applicable percentage ratios calculated for the purpose of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules will be, on an annual basis, less than 5%.
Accordingly, the Lease Agreement constitutes a de minimis continuing
connected transaction and is exempt from, reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders approval requirements
under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Lease Agreement
constitutes an exempt continuing connected transaction of the Company.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Investment Management Agreement

The Investment Manager, Evergrande Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
(“ESHK") is entitled to receive from the Company a management fee
accruing monthly at the annual amount of HK$600,000 and payable
monthly in advance.

On 11 September 2024, the Company received a notice for termination
of the Investment Management Agreement from ESHK, informing the
Company that ESHK will cease to serve as the Company’s investment
manager with effect from 4 October 2024. The reason for termination is
that ESHK had decided to discontinue investment management services to
all investment companies listed under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the management fee of HK$454,839 was paid by the
Company.
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The Investment Manager is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Chan Cheong
Yee, an executive Director, is also a director of the Investment Manager.
Accordingly, the service provided by the Investment Manager to the
Company under the Investment Management Agreement constituted a
continuing connected transaction of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ OPINION ON CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In the opinion of the Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, the terms of and the transactions contemplated under the
Investment Management Agreement, the Custodian Agreement and the
Lease Agreement have been entered into after arm’s length negotiation,
on normal commercial terms, and in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company, and are fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Company’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of
the non-exempt continuing connected transaction disclosed above by the
Company in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Investment Manager and their directors, officers and employees
provide management and advisory services to a number of hedge funds,
mutual funds and managed discretionary accounts with similar investment
objectives to the Company.

From time to time conflicts of interest may arise between the interest of
the Company and those of other clients. In such situations, the Investment
Manager will have regard to its obligations to the Company to act in the
best interests of the Company, so far as is practicable having regard also to
its obligations to the other clients.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee is a Director and had been a director of the
Investment Manager and is involved in the day-to-day operations of each
of these entities. This may give rise to conflicts of interest.
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As the overall interests of the Company and Investment Manager are
aligned, the Directors are of the view that Mr. Chan will be able to act
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. In addition,
all major decisions of each of these companies will be made by their
respective board of directors of these companies as a whole and not at the
sole discretion of Mr. Chan. In the case of the Company, this includes the
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive Directors.

Mr. Chan will maintain confidentiality in respect of the information of each
of the funds managed by the Investment Manager. They are also aware
of their obligations under the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong’s Internal Control Guidelines that they are required to establish and
ensure the integrity and security of all information relevant to the business
operations of the respective entities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the shares of
the Company under the articles of association of the Company although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 38 to 54,
the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules during the
Year and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited resigned as auditors of the Company
with effect from 16 December 2022. Elite Partners CPA Limited, has been
appointed as the auditors of the Company with effect from 16 December
2022, to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited and to hold office until the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company. Elite Partners CPA Limited will
retire at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no other change in the auditors of the
Company in the preceding three years.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had five full-time employees, one
executive Director, three non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. Details of the fees or emoluments of Directors in
respect of their services rendered to the Company and staff cost during
the Year are set out in Note 8 and Note 9 respectively to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this report.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Shengjie
Chairman
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of the Company has committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that a good corporate
governance standard will provide a framework for the Company to
formulate its business strategies and policies, and manage the associated
risks through effective internal control procedures. It will also enhance the
transparency and accountability of the Company to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and creditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that throughout the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Company was in compliance with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all
the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven members,
one of which is executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Yee. The
other six members comprise three non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chen Shengjie, who is the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Choi
Koon Ming, and Ms. Xiao Ruimei and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tong Yun Lung, Mr. Sze Tak Chi and Mr. Sui
Fuxiang. There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among other members of the Board.
The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Profiles of Directors” on pages 19 to 23 of this annual report.

The Board held seven meetings during the year ended 31 December
2024. The Board is responsible, inter alia, for establishing the investment
objective and policies of the Company, for complying with the Company’s
investment restrictions, for monitoring the Company’s performance and
for the appointing, supervising, directing and, if necessary, removing any
of the Company’s service providers, including the Investment Manager.

Current composition of the Board, including names of the independent
non-executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications to
shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information and accounts
of the Company. The Directors may seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the Company. The
Company will, upon request, provide separate independent professional
advice to the Directors to assist them to discharge their duties to the
Company.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Company’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs. The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Company’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place. All Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning. The independent nonexecutive
Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for
bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the 8B 313

Company’s expenses.

A summary of training received by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2024 according to the records provided by the Directors is as

follows:

Name of Directors
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Seminar and training on
corporate governance,
regulatory development and
other relevant topics

BREXEER EERER
EEng Hih BB EENEE RS
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee PREELAE v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Huang Bin b v
(Resigned on 17 September 2024) (20249 A17 HEHTL)
Mr. Choi Chit Sze Jackson EREREA v
(Resigned on 16 October 2024) (A 2024410 A 16 B &HE)
Mr. Chen Shengjie FR B 7R A v
(Appointed on 16 October 2024) (FR2024F 10 A 16 BEZRT)
Mr. Choi Koon Ming 2550, B 5 A 4
Ms. Xiao Ruimei BRI v/
Independent Non-executive Directors VHEITES
Mr. Tong Yun Lung BEELAE v
Mr. Sze Tak Chin MR A v/
Mr. Sui Fuxiang FEREEL A v/
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Board has at all times complied with the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to having a minimum of three independent
non-executive Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board)
with one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
nonexecutive Directors are independent.

Board Independence Evaluation

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure
a strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board
effectively exercises independent judgement to better safeguard
Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or
further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what actions
of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board
performance, for instance, addressing individual training and development
needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the Board
will conduct annual review on its independence. The Board Independence
Evaluation Report will be presented to the Board which will collectively
discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if appropriate.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness

of the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism and the results were
satisfactory.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference which
deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are available to the shareholders on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

All members of each Board committee consist of non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors only and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, audit plan and relationship with
external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, risk management system, internal control or other matters of
the Company. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2024 to review interim and annual financial results and
reports and significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems, scope of work and appointment of external
auditors, and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties. The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Company and the annual results and
audited financial statement for the Year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation) (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration; (ii) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration package of the Directors and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Directors from time to time; and (iv) reviewing and approving matters
relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2024 to consider the relevant matters regarding the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company and the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management and other
related matters. No material matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules were required to be reviewed or approved
by the Remuneration Committee during the Year.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on the proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategies, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would also discuss and make
recommendations to the Board on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board.
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In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria as
set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate,
before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2024 to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and to
consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at
the AGM.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted an updated Board Diversity Policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that
the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee is
committed to achieving diversity at all levels and will consider a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional
and industry experience.
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The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diverse
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is
also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all
levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured so that a
diverse range of candidates are considered. The Board will consider setting
measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review
such objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and
ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

At present, there is at least one female member in the Board. The
Nomination Committee considered that the Board is sufficiently diverse
and will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company targets to maintain at least the current level of
female representation on the Board or adjust as appropriate.
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Gender Diversity 3z e
The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Company and ARG ERAREEEENERZITLL R A
considers that the current gender diversity is satisfactory. The following B ﬁfﬁ']’l‘i/“u'l%ﬁ{t%ﬁﬁ o TEREFIIRARF
table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the Company, including HEIAQAR2EET (BREEFELaHERE
the Board and senior management as at the date of this Annual Report. [Z) & |$/”:|J LEfBI o
Female Male
M B
Board BEfFg 14% (1) 86% (6)
Senior Management SRERE 0% (0) 100% (2)
Other employees HEiiEE 50% (2) 50% (2)
Overall workforce BRAH N 23% (3) 77% (10)

The Company targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation in the workforce (including senior management). The
Company is not aware of any mitigating factors or circumstances which
make achieving gender diversity across the workforce (including senior
management) more challenging or less relevant.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of
the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and
the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18
years or above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

o Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at
general meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions as set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the Board had
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosures in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RE-ELECTION

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code states that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The independent non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term of 3 years,
subject to renewal after the expiry of the current term.

The circular to shareholders of the Company with notice of the AGM
contains biographical details of all the Directors proposed to be re-elected
at the meeting to enable shareholders of the Company to make an
informed decision on re-election of Directors.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AT
MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board Committee
meetings and the general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31 December 2024 is set out in the table below:
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EEHESRER

BREEHFEARANEE2024F 12 A31 81
FERTNESFENESZETEEUMER
AENBRERTE

Meeting attended/held
HE/ ETERRE
Annual/
Extraordinary
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
RRBE/
Ezg ENZRE FHEES REZEE BRAS
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REZEE Vi - - = N
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Huang Bin (Resigned on 17 EREE
September 2024) (R2024%9 A17BEHT) 2 - - = 11
Mr. Choi Chit Sze Jackson (Resigned on £ 2% 4
16 October 2024) (12024510 A 16 BB T) 23 - - - n
Mr. Chen Shengjie (Appointed on REALE
16 October 2024) (R20245 10 R 16 HEZ ) 44 - - - 000
Mr. Choi Koon Ming BRALE 37 - - - 11
Ms. Xiao Ruimei HinERt m - - - o1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFH{TEE
Mr. Tong Yun Lung EERRE i W 22 M /1
Mr. Sze Tak Chi ST 47 22 1n 1/ 111
Mr. Sui Fuxiang Bt E 17 Wy 22 22 101

Note: Mr. Chen Shengjie was appointed as non-executive Directors on 16 October 2024. The
Board had not held any annual/extraordinary general meeting after his appointment.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meeting with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.

Although some Directors were unable to attend the annual general
meeting due to other personal or business commitments, there were
sufficient number of Directors present at the annual general meeting to
enable the Board to develop a balanced understanding of the views of the
shareholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for each financial year and to present the interim results, annual financial
statements, and related announcements to shareholders.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The statement of the independent auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 67 to
72.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are in place both at the
Company and the Investment Manager level. The Investment Manager
has in place a comprehensive risk management and internal control policy
which includes procedures requiring regular performance of various risk
analysis on the Company’s portfolio and close monitoring of the portfolio
against the Company’s investment objective, policies and restrictions.
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At the Company level, a risk committee (the “Risk Committee”) which
consists of Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, an executive Director, relevant staffs
and consultants, is responsible for monitoring the operational and
portfolio risks to the Company and monitoring the Investment Manager
including reviewing whether the investment objectives, policies and
restrictions are being followed by the Investment Manager. In case
of any deviation, the Risk Committee will discuss deviations with the
Investment Manager immediately and monitor remedial action. For all
material deviations, the Risk Committee will formulate recommendations
to the Board on the appropriate remedial actions to be taken. The Risk
Committee meets on a monthly basis, or more regularly if a meeting is
requested by any risk committee member.

The Board, as supported by the Risk Committee, the Audit Committee
as well as the management, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the Year, and taking into account the internal audit review
performed the Company. considered that such systems are effective and
adequate. The annual review also covered the financial reporting and staff
qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE-BLOWING
MECHANISMS

The Company has a whistleblowing mechanism in place for employees and
relevant third parties who deal with the Company to raise concerns and
report any misconduct and violation of rules in confidence and anonymity
to any member of the Audit Committee. Investigation will be made
on such reported incidents and an appropriate course of action will be
determined in response. Regular review of the whistleblowing mechanism
is conducted to monitor its effectiveness from time to time. The Company
also adopts a zero tolerance approach against all forms of bribery and
corruption, and abides by the applicable laws and regulations to prevent
bribery, corruption, money laundering and fraud in its business operation.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the
Year is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” in

this annual report.

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s
independent auditors, Elite Partners CPA Limited, for audit services is
HK$450,000, and non-audit service is HK$50,000 respectively.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is the
company secretary of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary on corporate governance and board practices and matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Tai has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convening extraordinary general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2013
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow Article 25.3 of
the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to Article 25.3 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall be
convened on the written requisition of any members of the Company
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s),
provided that such requisitionist(s) hold(s) as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than ten per cent in the Net Asset Value of the shares
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to
be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months after the 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down in Article 34.3 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing
of the intention to propose such person for election as a Director, signed
by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed for election as
a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which
such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the registered
office of the Company. The minimum length of the period during which
such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and the period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries or request to the Company,
for the attention of Company Secretary, by fax: (852) 2706 9544, or
mail to Room 1802B., 18/F., Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company
has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy which sets out various
communication channels to maintain transparency, ensure that the
Shareholders and other investors have timely access to any information
on material developments of the Company, thereby facilitating their
understanding of the Company’s performance and prospects. The
Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, through annual general meetings or other general
meetings.
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The Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee will make
themselves available at the annual general meeting to meet with the
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.chinaneweconomyfund.com, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

During the Year, the Company has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy through
discussions amongst Board members during board meetings. The
Company has reviewed communication activities and engagement
with Shareholders conducted in 2024 and was satisfied with the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication
policy which allowed Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the conditions
and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend
for a financial year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report (the "ESG
Report”) has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in
Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange. In respect
of the information concerning “corporate governance”, please refer to the
relevant parts of the Company’s annual report.

The ESG Report describes the ESG performance made by the Company
during the Year. The scope of the ESG Report covers the business
operation in the management head office at Hong Kong.

The Board recognises the importance of ESG in meeting the changing
expectations of stakeholders while enhancing the value and performance
of the Company. Hence, the Board working together with the
management have taken on the overall responsibility of assessing and
identifying risks associated with ESG matters of the Company, and engage
in the mission to promote environmentally and socially sustainable culture
among all its employees to maintain long-term growth of the Company.

This culture enables the Company to formulate appropriate ESG policies
and procedures, to monitor and measure the progress of the ESG efforts,
and also to report on its performances to investors and key stakeholders.
The Board has continuously reviewed its ESG strategies and targets to
ensure that they are in line with the Company’s strategic goals and vision,
and the latest ESG trends and issues that may affect the Company’s
operations. The Company values its stakeholders and their views relating
to its businesses and environmental, social and governance issues. In
order to understand and address stakeholders’ concerns, the Company
communicates with its key stakeholders including but not limited to
investors, customers, government bodies, employees, suppliers and
communities through different channels.

In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Company
takes into account the stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve its
performance through mutual cooperation with the stakeholders, resulting
in creating greater value for the community.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality: Through regular discussions with the stakeholders of
various aspects, the Company identifies ESG-related topics, assesses
their materiality and relevance, and prioritises the EGS issues based on
feedback from stakeholders. Our key stakeholders include investors,
employees, investee companies, government and regulatory bodies, and
the community. The management also reviews the material ESG issue
to identify the focus for the Company’s ESG efforts and ensure that
stakeholder's opinions are reflected.

Quantitative: This ESG Report discloses relevant key performance
indicators supported by quantitative information within the environmental
and social categories, and if applicable, comparisons with past
performance.

Balance: The Company followed the principles of accuracy, objectivity,
and fairness in reporting the sustainability performance and challenges
related to the Company and stakeholders.

Consistency: The Company adheres to the ESG Reporting Guide in its
disclosures. As far as reasonably practicable, the Company has adopted
consistent methodologies when calculating the key performance indicators
or any changes that affect a meaningful comparison would be stated.

The aspects and key performance indicators as defined in the ESG

Reporting Guide which were considered to be relevant and material to the
Company will be presented below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AREA

Aspect A1: Emissions and Waste

The Company integrates environmental responsibility into its
business operation and office management. We also adhere to
the principles of recycling and waste reduction to minimise our
ecological footprint. During the Year, the Company has complied
with relevant environmental laws and regulations, including Air
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that has an impact relating to air and
greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions, discharges into water and land,
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the Company
during the Year (2023: Nil).

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations had been reported during the Year
(2023: Nil).

Due to nature of the Company’s business, it produces no direct air
or direct GHG emissions. A small amount of GHG were emitted
indirectly during the Year from the consumption of electricity in
the office, which was supplied by power station where GHG were
directly emitted. We strive to maintain the Company’s emissions at a
low level.

By the same reason of the nature of the Company’s business, no
hazardous waste was produced and there was no discharge into
water and land during the Year (2023: Nil). An insignificant small
amount of non-hazardous wastes were collected at the office,
which were primarily waste paper, office supplies, and domestic
wastes. Despite minimal impact to the environment, the Company
has implemented environmental-friendly measures to manage GHG
emissions and waste production as described in the later section
titled “environmental-friendly measures” in order to meet its
target set for reduction on paper consumption intensity and waste
production.
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Scopes of GHG emissions BERBHHZEE

Scope 1 — Direct emissions from operations that are owned or #WE1 — BARRIAEASIZES 2%
controlled by the Company, such as the use of company BEEZEEHEW WERA
vehicle; NEE

Scope 2 — Energy indirect emissions resulting from purchased #HE2 — BARRERINBEHAE
electricity consumed by the Company; A2 e R EERL

Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions that occur outside the 3 — ARFININEE 2 K5
Company, including both upstream and downstream PR BE LR T 28
emissions, such as methane gas generation at landfill W EHEE EE AR
due to disposal of paper waste, GHG emissions due to EE 2R BAAE0PIEE
electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage RIKRSKEFERE A5
by government departments and business air travel by BABEREBEEN - A RE
employees. B R IR 7T I F5 TR o

The amount of emissions under these different GHG scopes in CO, RAFE ZETFRREREBHIE T 2

equivalent ("CO,e") during the Year was as follows: mE (A ZEtixEE (a8t E

EIRTWT :
(Units: Tonnes of CO_e) 2024 2023
(B B —S{tRER) 2024 F 20234
Emission Emission
GHG emissions Major sources volume Intensities volume Intensities
BERBHER FERR HmaE RE = mE
(Note) (Note 1)
(B &E) (MEEE)

Scope 1

Eol |

Direct emissions Nil - - - -

BEBEW i

Scope 2

§10%2

Energy indirect emissions Purchased electricity - - 4.36 0.55

BE IR A 12 HE A BEE

Scope 3

Col ]

Other indirect emissions Disposal of paper 0.24 0.05 0.28 0.04

H B EBER

Total GHG emissions 0.24 0.05 4.65 0.58

BEREBHENEE

Note: Intensity is measured by dividing the relevant emissions by the number of Misk - mMERRAFERZBBEHERERUESE

employees as at the end of the Year. BEtE -
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The Company generated no scope 1 and scope 2 emissions and an
insignificant amount of scope 3 emissions during the Year. The cost
of electricity consumption of the Company is inclusive in the monthly
rent and the landlord does not measure the electricity of each tenant
individually and hence no relevant data can be collected.

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

As detailed in the section headed “Emissions and Waste”, electricity
consumption was a major source of indirect GHG emission during
the Year. The consumption of electricity was similar to that in the
same period in previous year. The amount of consumption by types
of energy or resources during the Year was as follows:

BRI - g kERmE

MAFEE  RAGRUEELHB IR
B228my MEEVEBE3IZHM
W ARRRMEXRABESNAERN - F
RUTEFFERHPZREE  #E
AW EREEUE -

BHEA2: ERER

WP M EERY) | — PR - AE
ARFERZAZEREIRZ TZHRT
REEREZFRAYPEE RAFE &
EERKERERIE D 2 HFEEMT ¢

2023
20234

Energy and resources Unites Amount Intensities Amount Intensities
RER R B IR B BE BE HE 7E

(Note) (Note)

(B &E) GE
Electricity kWh - 6,415 916
B TRE
Paper Kilograms 10 59 7
R T

Note: Intensity is measured by dividing the relevant emissions by the number of
employees as at the end of the Year.

The Company consumes water in the office from a centralised water
and sanitation system implemented in the building. The cost of water
consumption of the Company is inclusive in the monthly rent, and
the building management does not individually measure the water
consumption of each tenant and hence no relevant data can be
collected. No issue arises in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose
of the Company’s operation as the water supply is managed by the
building management.

The cost of electricity consumption of the Company is inclusive in the
monthly rent and the landlord does not measure the electricity of
each tenant individually and hence no relevant data can be collected.
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Due to the nature of the Company’s business no packaging material
was used.

Paper was primarily used for office printing. During the Year, a
total of approximately 50 kg of paper was consumed, there was no
material change in the usage pattern of paper compared to previous
years.

The Company has set the target to keep energy and water
consumption at a minimal level. Despite minimal impact to the
environment, energy and resource conservation are essential parts
of the Company’s ESG strategy which will be detailed in the later
section titled “environmental-friendly measures”.

Aspect A3: Environment and Natural Resources

The Company does not use any natural resources in the process of
its business, and hence the impact on the environment or natural
resources was minimal during the Year. Nonetheless the Company is
well aware of the importance in environmental protection, and has
adopted policies and a range of measures to minimise current impact
and manage any potential adverse impact in the future, persisting in
conducting our business in an environmentally responsible manner.
These policies and measures are described below.

Environmental-friendly measures

The Company has always put great emphasis on energy and resource
conservation, which is shown by its engagement in energy savings
and implementation of workplace strategies to reduce energy and
water consumptions. Accordingly, the Company has the following
measures which are regularly carried out to achieve its ESG strategy
in the course of the Company’s operations:

1.  Employees are encouraged to use video/telephone
conferencing system to reduce business travel and take public
transportation wherever possible to lower environmental
impact from the burning of fossil fuel.

2. The Company has also implemented energy and water saving
practices, such as maintaining workplace temperature at a
comfortably low level with reference to the relevant standard
recommended by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department of the Hong Kong Government to reduce energy
use.
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3. The Company engaged in environmental-friendly measures in
the workplace in the effort to lower energy consumption, for
instance, employees of the Company are reminded to minimise
their impact on the environment and the use of natural
resources when conducting business.

4. Waste reduction measures include monitoring and recording
paper usage on a monthly basis, and promoting the use of
recycled paper and double-sided printing are actively adopted
wherever possible.

5. The Company’s efficient use of resources and waste reduction
initiatives and guidelines are stipulated in the Staff Handbook
and policies where appropriate to educate and promote ESG to
employees.

Aspect A4: Climate Change

As climate change emerges as a critical global challenge, the
Company recognise its potential impact on the performance of our
investments. The Company has proactively sought to identify and
mitigate climate risks to ensure portfolio resilience and sustainable
returns. During the Year, there is no significant climate-related issues
which had impacted, and which may impact the Company.

SOCIAL SUBJECT AREAS

Aspect B1: Employment

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Company. The Remuneration Committee was set up to providing
a fair and equitable workplace environment for employees, and
ensures that they are reasonably remunerated.

The Company has incorporated guidelines into the Staff Handbook,
covering all aspects of employment, including working hours, rest
periods, salary and welfare, code of conduct, and anti-bribery.
Employment policies in the Staff Handbook have been reviewed and
regularly updated.
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The Company has fully complied with the Employment Ordinance,
the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487), the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 527) and the Race Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 602). The Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that has
an impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare during the Year
(2023: Nil).

As at the end of the Year, there were five (included three males and
two females) full-time employees employed by the Company (2023:
Eight). There were five employees at the age range 30-50 years
old. The Company is based in Hong Kong and all of its employees
work at the Hong Kong office. The employee turnover rates of the

RARTEREFREBIED 1 RIEAR 515
(8480%) IR IR IEH ($£487 %) -
KRR IG0 (527 F) REKRIE
BAEDI (B602F) - RAFE - AAF

REF T REERE - FTERE %
TeE ~ RIEAR A R E At 1558 Ko 48 A 05
B BT EZEMERBEED
KRR Z 180 (20234 « &) -

RAFER  ARABRADLA (BR=%
SUHERA L) 2BEE (2023F : N\
#) BERBERBNFHRNTFI0E505 °
RARBEHUREE E2RBEEZT
EMB I REENLNE - ARFIEED

Company’s employees are summarised as follows: EERBEFMAT :
2024
2024 F
Employee turnover EBERE %
Total turnover rate FEPTEIRS 46
By gender =14t FE 5
Male S 29
Female % 67
By age HFERE S
Aged 30-40 302407 67
Aged 40-50 40 £ 50 5% 0
Aged 50-60 50 & 60 5% 100
By geographical region i 7 £ 5
Hong Kong aBE 46

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Company is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment for all of its employees, protecting them from any
potential occupational hazards. The tasks of the employees are
mainly office-based, and thus safety issues are not as pertinent
to the job nature. The Company also offers coverage on medical
insurance (including in-patient and out-patient) and compensation
to employees in the event of sickness and work-related injury.
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During the Year, the Company complied with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509) in Hong Kong and did not record
any work-related fatality, injury or lost day in the past three years.

Aspect B3: Development and Training

The Company attaches great importance to the staff development
and quality of employee. The Company has offered training
opportunities from external organisations, and offers flexible training
time to facilitate all employees to reinforce skill sets and to keep up-
to-date with the latest knowledge in their profession.

We have provided training specific to the needs of the management,
such as training on corporate governance to enhance the efficiency
and effectiveness of the management of the Company. We also
equip other employees with hands-on training required for their daily
work.

The percentage of employees of the Company receiving training and
the average training hours per employee during the Reporting Year
are summarised as follows:

RIE - g REARE
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2024
Employee training EEEZI 2024 F
Percentage of employees trained ZIEEBSL
Total st 60%
By gender =1t FIE 5
Male B 67%
Female =gk 50%
By employee category 1% 1E 52 5l &) 5
Senior management SRERRE 100%
General staff —RET 50%

Average training hours per employee
Total

BRREEFIIEIEH

st

By gender =1L FIE 5
Male St

Female M

By employee category % 1E 525 &) 5
Senior management aBRERE
General staff —fRET

18.2 hours /J\B

18.3 hours 7\ B
18 hours /| i

16.5 hours /| B
19 hours /) \EF

FEFEEREBR AR / FiR 2024



64

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - g NERWE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Company is committed to preventing child and forced labour
in the workplace and complying with all applicable labour laws and
regulations on employment in Hong Kong including those relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

The Company respects human rights and treats this as an important
factor when making investment in human capital in comprehensive
screening process in order to recruit employees with good quality.
The Company requires all job applicants to provide valid identity
documents and personal data and background information will
be collected and verified in details to ensure that they are lawfully
employable prior to confirmation of any employment and preventing
illegal workers, child labour and forced labor. If the use of forced
labour or child labour is discovered, the Company will terminate the
employment contract and investigate if further action is needed.

Employee work schedules are set up fairly to keep within standard
work hours and the employees are entitled to annual leave,
sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
compassionate leave.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding. Unlike
those companies which manufacture, trade or provide services, the
Company has relatively few suppliers and a very simplistic supply
chain. The environmental and social impacts with regards to supplier
chain is relatively low.

The Company’s suppliers are mainly those third-party suppliers
providing services such as information technology, property
management, advertising, legal and consulting, and third-party
suppliers of goods such as office equipment, and printing and
stationery. During the Year, the Company has 11 key suppliers, and
all of the suppliers are based in Hong Kong.
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The Company maintains practices that build up positive relationships
with its suppliers as well as focusing on service quality when selecting
suppliers. We closely evaluate all suppliers against our ethical and
ESG standards and avoid those suppliers who are known to have
significant ESG non-compliances. The Company purchases from a
list of approved suppliers that have been awarded for their quality
of goods and services through the selection process. With this
practice, we believe the environmental social risks of our supply
chain are properly managed and are kept to minimal. Feedbacks are
provided regarding their ESG performance whenever it is possible
and suitable.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Due to the Company’s business nature, it does not deliver any
product or service and hence product responsibility is not applicable
to the Company.

When evaluating our investments, comprehensive due diligence
inclusive of ESG risk assessments and business prospects analysis
is conducted to ensure the quality of such investments. Although
the Company does not provide product or service to stakeholders,
any kind of intellectual property infringement including any use of
pirated software is prohibited in our office.

The Company has complied with relevant law and regulations with
regards to data protection and privacy when transacting with third-
party and dealing with member share registration matters.

Unauthorised copying, dissemination or disclosure of confidential
information, including identities and records of transactions of
registered members, are strictly prohibited. During the Year, the
Company has not received any significant complaint from any
stakeholders (2023: Nil).
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Company has strict policies that ensures adherence to the
highest ethical standards and maintains a corporate culture
of integrity and justice to prevent, detect and report all types
of corruption, including bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Company also has a whistle-blowing mechanism in
place for employees and relevant third parties to report suspicious
misconduct and violation of rules under strict confidentiality. Regular
review of such mechanism is conducted to monitor its effectiveness
from time to time. In complying with provisions included in the
Staff Handbook, employees at all levels are expected to conduct
in an appropriate manner, with integrity, impartiality and honesty.
Support for training on anti-corruption is provided to the employees
and directors of the Company as necessary.

The Company has complied with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions)
Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
relevant laws in regions in which the Company invests. The Company
was not aware of any significant matter related to corruption
during the Year (2023: Nil) and there was no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Company or its
employees during the Year.

Aspect B8: Community Investment

The Company acknowledges the influence we may have in society
and focuses on the surrounding communities. The Company
encourages employees to devote time in participating in various local
community activities and events on a voluntary basis on the focus
areas, including social welfare and environmental concerns, and
will consider making relevant community investment in the future.
The Company will make the best use of its influence to address the
community needs and will continue to act socially responsible in the
future.
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To the shareholders of China New Economy Fund Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of China New Economy Fund
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 73 to 163, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (”IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant (the “HKICPA™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A R s

KEY AUDIT MATTERS FAEEXEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, RBEEZFZEEHIRIEETSOBENE - HE80
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the ~ HIEMBI FRENBEREZAEENEA - LT
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of ~EBEINEBSEREBU KRR M ES R

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, #1TEE  MBEZETTHHEEHREEBE

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. R o
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EREKSEE MAEZRAREZSER

Carrying amounts of unlisted investments

FLMEEKRAEE

As disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements, the Our procedures in relation to the carrying amounts of
investment portfolio includes investments in unlisted unlisted investments included:

investments. EEBANIELTREREDENEFBE -

MM BRI T 16FTHE - REEEBRENIELTR

BEmRE - e Obtained understanding the design and operating
effectiveness of the financial reporting controls we

We identified the carrying amounts of unlisted investments considered significant in the valuations and model

as a key audit matter due to the significance of these approval process;

investments in the financial statements, and because o HEEZERAEHELERILERERBEZHE

determining the valuation methodology and the inputs BREEENRAREBRR

involved estimation uncertainty and required significant

judgement to be applied by the investment manager and the e Assessed the valuation methodologies applied for
board of directors. appropriateness against accepted market practice;
FEEMEHFLITRENFEAER - HFAREZEFR R o FEMEANGERTEZZENEARNTHED
HARZRINZERECVBHRRPEZN  URETEM

BRZERBABSREENGFTHREMAFTEREE

BARESSEREEHEK -
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RV A R

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEEFEXER M ELERERER

o Compared the assumptions used in the Company’s
models and methodologies to independent external
sources where possible;

o IR ERAIRERITAMARREE T HINBK
TR (B AT

o Assessed the valuation techniques and inputs
used, particularly where valuation inputs were
unobservable;

o  FIMAMMAMERMKREBAE FRfEMERAEB
A MRS

o Reconciled input data to supporting evidence, such as
latest financial information/statements approved by
independent auditors;

o YW ABUREXIFER  fINEB R eI E
BRI E R ]

o Compared the recent transaction price with the
valuation basis provided by management; and

s UBUIHNRZERAEEERMHNOMGEREM R

o Evaluated the adequacy of financial statement
disclosures.

o HEMBBRIBBERLRED -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A R s

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AR A R s

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going o FHERHFAZESL ST ERNBE MK

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence Ed iEm - BIBFIISNEZEE BT
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or EAGEEEMNIBEREBNERNTE
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability EM - RMATaEE BEARRFELEN
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material ENEAEARE MESRAGFLE
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s ATEEN - AE B ERZEAIRE P
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such RETEMBRRPOMEEEE - R
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions EEBEETR  AIBEBIESEC2ER -
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our ikkﬁﬁ/ﬁéuﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\\éti’f?%lﬁﬂﬁ&i H &5
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the IEFTERUSHEIZRE - AT - KRREH
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. HIFERAIEY BAREESELE -

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the o  FFHBIEIREZOERE R - BE K

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the AR BEFEEER  UWEFERERE
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and BHRERA ARz A ARBAEAR S
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. KEZEI1E -
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ZZHEE EE A A S5 (AP EE) EX T
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant ~ ZI&3E BB L HE R EAFEXHIRER @ %5

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 318 B 3EE S EEZBRE R F RN IFEIEH

we identify during our audit. EfTERERK ©

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement thatwe ZEMABEEAABELER HRES
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, & B BB ENIREEE S - WRKESE
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that BARERAERAS T ETSB I ENE S
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where  {ZNEMEBIR - UK AEBREZ MERIAOTTE
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. SGERAME R (EA) -

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent HAXRBUZEMFENEZBEARALSR
auditor’s report is Mr. Siu Jimmy with practising certificate number:  {£R %4 (FEEZEZ4IE : P05898) °

P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited TR EEAMERLA
Certified Public Accountants PRSI A

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025 HA 20253 H27H

Unit 1503, 15/F, BE

Jubilee Centre, T

18 Fenwick Street, DA 1857

Wan Chai, B AR

Hong Kong 15421503 %
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Bam LA RN ER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z=2024F12 A318ILFE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
REVENUE A 5 759,920 126,339
Net loss on financial assets at fair value BAFEBBERIEZ
through profit or loss CRVEEC EIBFE 6 (17,515,762) (35,365,185)
Other operating expenses E @R (12,065,736) (17,015,757)
OPERATING LOSS EERIE (28,821,578) (52,254,603)
Finance costs B RS A 7(a) (156,953) (182,240)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRELATE 1B 7(b) (28,978,531) (52,436,843)
Income tax expense Fr8fif = 12 = =
LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AKPREBESEEAEN
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE FRAFEREZEBEHEEE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (28,978,531) (52,436,843)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AAAEEEREEAEN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREER
THE COMPANY 13
— Basic - EAK (0.02) (0.04)
— Diluted D (0.02) (0.04)
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Statement of Financial Position

SRR

As at 31 December 2024 120245 12A31H

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14(a) 181,847 1,419,547
Deposits e 15 = 200,000
Total non-current assets IEREEELRE 181,847 1,619,547
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE - e R E MR
other receivables I 15 893,418 1,623,057
Amount due from brokers FEUL#E 42 A FRIB 15 8,074,074 8,350,713
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEBEBERYES
profit or loss ERMEE 16 42,960,053 66,340,464
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFE 18 13,007,593 17,309,428
Total current assets MEEEEE 64,935,138 93,623,662
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals EMENRIERETE A 19 3,459,664 2,847,326
Amount due to a related party FEAS — & BEES 5 5B 20 600,000 1,100,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 14(b) 197,899 1,260,032
Total current liabilities mEBEEE 4,257,563 5,207,358
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 60,677,575 88,416,304
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHRERASER
LIABILITIES 60,859,422 90,035,851
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) = 197,898
Total non-current liabilities EREBBELE - 197,898
Net assets BEEFRE 60,859,422 89,837,953
EQUITY e
Issued capital BT 22 52,788,011 52,788,011
Reserves {1 8,071,411 37,049,942
Total equity R RE 60,859,422 89,837,953
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE BREEFE 23 0.05 0.07
Director Director
o EBZE
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Statement of Changes in Equity
BESS T =

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z=2024F12 A318ILFE

Issued Share
capital premium
BRATRE R EE
HKS HKS$

BT AT

(Note 22) (Note 22)

(B522) (His£22)

Share
Distributable options  Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
IHIREE  BRERE 2 ER @t
HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
(Note) (Note 21)

(Bst) (BsE21)

15,427,143 1,777,000 (184,515401)  142,274,7%

- (1,218,500) 1,218,500 S

(52,436,843)  (52,436,843)

15,427,143* 558,500*  (235,733,744)* 89,837,953

(28,978,531)  (28,978,531)

15,427,143* 558,500*  (264,712,275)* 60,859,422

At 1 January 2023 2023F1A18 52,788,011 256,798,043
Lapsed of equity-settled DEREERNROAH

share-based payment K - -
Loss and total comprehensive rEEBERZABE

loss for the year ag - -
At 31 December 2023 and at 035128318 R

1 January 2024 20041818 52,788,011 256,798,043*
Loss and total comprehensive TEEBERZERS

loss for the Year &% = =
At 31 December 2024 72024512 8318 52,788,011 256,798,043*
* These reserve accounts comprise the reserve of HK$8,071,411 (2023: HK$37,049,942)

in the statement of financial position.

Note: Distributable reserve is a balance of credit derived from capital reduction which may be
utilised by the directors of the Company. It gives greater flexibility to the Company to
declare dividends and/or to undertake any corporate exercise which requires the use of
distributable reserves in the future.

* I EREREREMBRNERAZ#ES,071,4117%8
7€ (2023 4F : 37,049,942 7T) °

MiEE AT IR A A AR AN ) ) 5 AT B A R AR AN R i 22
EZHESRTE  WAKARRKRERKE &K
ETERNASBAHESIRFEFRZCEESRHERE
REEE -
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Statement of Cash Flows
HEmER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z=2024F 12 A31HILFE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BETDRBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax AT S 18 (28,978,531) (52,436,843)
Adjustment for: BATIEE #E :
Finance cost YR IV 156,953 182,240
Bank interest income RITF B YA (55,509) (26,339)
Depreciation of right-of-use asset FREEENE 1,237,700 1,462,791
Net realised loss on financial assets BATEEBERIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRMEEC SR EEFE 6 3,541,193 59,123,751
Net unrealised loss/(gain) on financial BAFEBBRERIEZ
assets at fair value through CRMEEREEEE
profit or loss (Yezs) F 58 6 13,974,569 (23,758,566)
Operating cash flows before movements ZEE ¢ E ALK ERERE
in working capital (10,123,625) (15,452,966)
Payment for purchase of financial asset #EIZAFEFEBEZRIIE L
at fair value through profit or loss EREE MK (4,840,093) (6,596,627)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HEERATFEEBERIE L
at fair value through profit or loss TREEFTSHIA 10,704,742 18,895,783
Change in prepaid expenses and TR 52 B HAth & WK I B B
other receivable 929,639 220,806
Change in amount due to related FE B RSN B RIB &
companies (500,000) -
Change in amount due from brokers JE U 4% 40 A FRIE & 276,639 (8,340,710)
Change in accruals and other payable — fE&H % F & E fb fE (< F08 & 612,338 1,345,936
Cash used in operations EEMARE (2,940,360) (9,927,778)
Interest received BB 55,509 26,339
Net cash flows used in operating LEEFMAREeREFE
activities (2,884,851) (9,901,439)
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Statement of Cash Flows
WEMRER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z=2024F12 A318ILFE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETHFBZHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid EARALE (85,273) (1,944)
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEABENLTESE DY
lease liability 14(b) (1,331,711) (617,521)
Net cash flows used in financing METEBFMARESREFEE
activities (1,416,984) (619,465)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBELZERLFE
EQUIVALENTS (4,301,835) (10,520,904)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning AFE ¥R 4 RIS EHE
of year 17,309,428 27,830,332
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ZXFEARERELEE
END OF YEAR 13,007,593 17,309,428
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOFCASH REeNBEESZEERINT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
— Cash at banks —R1TR % 18 13,007,593 17,309,428
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

CORPORATION INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 February
2010 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company was
established for the purpose of acting as a closed-ended investment
company.

The Company’s registered office is at P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
at Room 1802B., 18/F., Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong.

The principal investment objective of the Company is to achieve
long-term capital appreciation through investing globally in both
private and public enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

During the Year, the Company’s investment activities are managed
by Evergrande Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Investment
Manager”). The Investment Manager ceased to serve as the
Company’s investment manager with effect from 4 October 2024.
Moreover, during the period from the resignation of the Investment
Manager effective on 4 October 2024 to the date of appointment
of the new investment manager, the Board had full responsibility for
the investment activities of the Company. The Board considers that
there is no material impact on the Company’s operation due to the
resignation of the Investment Manager.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of Appendix D2 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair values. The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") except when
otherwise indicated.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Company has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the Company’s annual period beginning on
1 January 2024 for the preparation of the financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 and

IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Company’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

2.2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease
Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The Company has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year.

The amendments add subsequent measurement requirements for
sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements of
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be accounted
for as a sale. The amendments require a seller-lessee to determine
“lease payments” or “revised lease payments” such that the seller-
lessee would not recognise a gain or loss that relates to the right of
use retained by the seller-lessee. The amendments also clarify that
applying the requirements does not prevent the seller-lessee from
recognising in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to subsequent
partial or full termination of a lease.

According to the transitional provisions, the Company has applied
the new accounting policy retrospectively to the sale and leaseback
transactions entered into by the Company as the seller-lessee after
the initial application of IFRS 16. The application of the amendments
has no material impact on the Company’s financial position and
performance.
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2.2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The Company has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the classification
should not be affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within 12 months.

o clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer of
cash, goods or services, or the entity’s own equity instruments
to the counterparty. If a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.
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2.2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the
”2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to IAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)
(Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that only
covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before
the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only after the
reporting date. The 2022 Amendments also specify that covenants
with which an entity must comply after the reporting date (i.e. future
covenants) do not affect the classification of a liability as current or
non-current at the reporting date. However, if the entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
covenants within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity
discloses information that enables users of financial statements
to understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable within
twelve months after the reporting period. This would include
information about the covenants, the carrying amount of related
liabilities and facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the
entity may have difficulties complying with the covenants.

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2024

2.2 ERBER % ®EER (B

MB|EER D) BT H (&)

ERERESTEREI1RETAEERE
PEARBHIERE (12020 FEFT4])
REIBSHERE1RBT AT RS
MWIEREEE ([2022 FEFTAR]) HEE
(/&)

R EEHREEEREAHRED
T8 A 2R (AT R B BRI

#

il

T 2022 EBFEIAERRE RA
TERERRERNZAIBET ZHHA
FEREZERKBERERBEREERY
HEAEZ L+ @A Z#F - Bl RE
ZBTERENRE B EETE 2 2022
FASEIAINGI R - BEEAME A HE Y
BT 2 R (BIRREHE) TEHER
MEAHEEBESEARDIIERD -

%ﬁﬂ %@%"%&Lt@ EEBEIEFZRRA

% ot
K

SR+ - EARETRE

%D

2 BENNEMBHREAERE
RZFABENEREHR+T @A
,Q%Z}—L % o REEMBRIERHE
HEEBEZREEARKRAEEBITEEH
NETRHEZEERIEN (WH) -



2.2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the
”2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to IAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)
(Continued)

In accordance with the transition provision, the Company has
applied the new accounting policy to the classification of liability
as current or non-current retrospectively. The application of the
amendments in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7
Supplier Finance Arrangements

The Company has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments add a disclosure objective to
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows stating that an entity is required
to disclose information about its supplier finance arrangements
that enables users of financial statements to assess the effects of
those arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows. In
addition, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was amended
to add supplier finance arrangements as an example within the
requirements to disclose information about an entity’s exposure
to concentration of liquidity risk. In accordance with the transition
provision, the entity is not required to disclose comparative
information for any reporting periods presented before the
beginning of the annual reporting period in the first year of
application as well as the information required by IAS 7:44 (b)(ii) and
(b)(iii) above as at the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the entity first applies those amendments. The application of
the amendments in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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2.3 NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO IFRSS IN ISSUE 23 CHEMAEEKREXNWHTRE

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE PR B 5 R 5 2 Bl 2 {8 5T A
The Company has not early applied the following new and ARARIEFEBATEBME®R
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: ER A R BB B A s R 2 55T
N
Amendments to IFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification R B T R AE R SRTASER
and IFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial 25 958 K BUFR B 75 STEMERT?
Instrument WELNETRZ
1EET AR
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets B s s 42 A AT 5 B H B
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its 10 9% R B BRI EE
Associate or Joint Venture? AR 2855 rEZAEE
ZABET AR PFABES
Amendments to IFRS Annual Improvements to IFRS PR B 7 5 AR Al BREF TSRS
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards' FETER ZBET AR AR R
FEoE
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability? gt R RS A] R ]2
F221RABE] R
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in B B B 7 S 42 A B mERa 27
Financial Statements® #1855 &R
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. ! RAEE BB 2 & R K FE R AR -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 2 202591 A1 B2 & FRIAEYF E BARE 4
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. 3 ;§2026$1 R1BS 2 BB FESRBE
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. 4 ;§2027$ 1ATB 2 BRIAEFE AR -
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all AKRAREZTEHAER A T MR
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the BHRELENZEITARARREREKTS
financial statements in the foreseeable future. HUBHRRENERNTLE -
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its equity instruments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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B H5 Rk B et

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 24 EXEBEREHR ()

INFORMATION (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued) ATEFE (F)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed FrERIEmER NAR FEFT S HEE

in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value WEERABRYUEATEFSERE

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that BFENREKTFHABELAERERATE
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: BHRDEMT :

Level 1 —based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for FA-ABEBREERBERNERTS
identical assets or liabilities BB CRESAE)

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level B IRIEREK T A BB K
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is BERABREHNTEFER
directly or indirectly observable B|BAMHERM

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level FE=R-BEBEFEKFHABEBLTAEH
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is RAHNFEAZEEANMG
unobservable By

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial IR BB ERER N T ERM B HRE

statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company HRNEERBEMS ARAFTRER

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the HFHRBRENTEER RBEH A FE
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level HEEEMEEERNKEKTEHAMB)
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at EESERcHARREEER -

the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which
it arises, (only if there are revalued assets in the financial statements)
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,

or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement

approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of

low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make

lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use

the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Company as a lessee (Continued)

®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Company exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Company as a lessee (Continued)
(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office premises (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to
be low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (“OCI"), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset that is a debt instrument to be classified
and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models
and financials assets which are equity instruments are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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B H5 Rk B et

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as revenue in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In
that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Company could be required to repay.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Company compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Company
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs.

Stage 1 —Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include other payables and
accruals, amounts due to brokers and lease liability.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income is recognised on the date on which the investments
are quoted ex-dividend or, where no ex-dividend rate is quoted,
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established and it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income is
presented gross of any non-recoverable withholding taxes, which
are disclosed separately in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

Revenue from sources other than dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
described below.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Income from profit guarantee is recognised when the amount is
received or receivable.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Company receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer at the date when the grant is made using a
binomial model.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Company or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Company if that person:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company;
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 24 EXEBEREHR ()
INFORMATION (Continued)
Related parties (Continued) BES (&)
(b)  the entity is related to the Company if any of the following (b) fWMATNEMIBERER A XEEH
conditions applies: RAFBEE
(i)  the entity and the Company are members of the same () ZEBEAAFBER—%E
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and KB AR (EERZFZMK
fellow subsidiary is related to the others; EEHY QNG MBARMAE
RINERARIEE B ME)
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy, —HEERS EmE=
entity (or of an associate or joint venture of a member of NElHEERE (HAS—E
a group of which the other entity is a member); BAESBE /K E AR A
EhENEEREE)
(i) the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the (iy ZEBRARATHAER—F
same third party; =R EERE
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy —EBEAF=FBENE
entity is an associate of the third entity; Eh¥E MR —ERBAZS

==

RARNTA K —REAR

=113

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) ZE R
benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity NEEHENEENRESRN
related to the Company; &) M a& B Bk B AR AT

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) HEBX(@FHANALTES
identified in (a); S HHEFES
(viiy a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) @O FTEBIA TS Z B &
over the entity or is a member of the key management EEAFENBZER (kZ
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and EERBYTAR) Ezz"'ﬁ =1z
Hb—HKE
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (i) ZERBIEMBEERNEM
part, provides key management personnel services to the KB ARIMARRHAR A
Company or to the parent of the Company. NARRBREIEZEEEAER
% o
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Share capital

The Company’s ordinary shares are classified as equity as the
Company has full discretion on repurchasing the shares and on
dividend distributions.

Issuance and acquisition of ordinary shares are accounted for as
equity transactions.

Upon issuance of shares, the consideration received is included in
equity.

Transaction costs incurred by the Company in issuing or acquiring
its own equity instruments are accounted for as a deduction
from equity to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have
been avoided.

Own equity instruments which are acquired are deducted from
equity and accounted for at amounts equal to the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs.

No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions are at the discretion of the Company. A
dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is accounted
for as a deduction from retained earnings. An interim dividend is
recognised directly as a liability in the period in which it is irrevocably
declared by the Board of Directors. A final dividend is recognised as
a liability in the period in which it is approved by the annual general
meeting of shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Company operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

The Company is exempted from all forms of taxation in Cayman
Islands, including income, capital gains and withholding taxes.
However, in some jurisdictions, investment income and capital
gains are subject to withholding tax deducted at the source of the
income. Withholding tax is a generic term used for the amount of
withholding tax deducted at the source of the income. The Company
presents the withholding tax separately from the gross investment
income in profit or loss.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is the Hong
Kong dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The Company’s performance
is evaluated and its liquidity is managed in Hong Kong dollars.
Therefore, the Hong Kong dollar is considered as the currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies translations

Foreign currency transactions during the Year are translated at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising from translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Foreign currency transactions gains and losses on financial
instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are
included in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income
as part of the “Net change in fair value of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”. Foreign exchange
differences on other financial instruments are included in profit
or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as “Foreign
exchange gains/loss, net”.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

LSP implications

The Group operates in Hong Kong and may be are obliged to pay LSP
to employees under certain circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group
makes mandatory and voluntary MPF contributions to the trustee
who administers the assets held in a trust solely for the retirement
benefits of each individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against an
employee’s accrued retirement benefits derived from employers’
MPF contributions was allowed under the Employment Ordinance
(Cap.57). In June 2023, the Government of the HKSAR gazetted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2023 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived
from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset severance
payment and LSP (the “Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take
effect on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition, under
the Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s salary immediately
preceding the Transition Date (instead of the date of termination of
employment) is used to calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the
employment period before the Transition Date.

In July 2024, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of
the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong”
which provides guidance for the accounting for the offsetting
mechanism and the impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this, the Group has
implemented the guidance published by the HKICPA in connection
with the LSP obligation retrospectively so as to provide more reliable
and more relevant information about the effects of the offsetting
mechanism and the abolition.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Company operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Company in an independently administered fund. The
Company’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Going concern

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that the Company has the resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern
basis.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond the control of the Company. These changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex
tax regulations and changes in tax laws on foreign withholding
tax. Given the wide range of international investments, differences
arising between the actual investment income and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The Company
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective
jurisdiction in which it invests. The amounts of these provisions are
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits
and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity
and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of investments.

Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets recorded in the statement
of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, their
fair value is determined using a variety of valuation techniques that
include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. The
estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such
as the share price of the underlying investment, correlation, volatility
and transactions of shares. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments
in the statement of financial position and the level where the
instruments are disclosed in the fair value hierarchy.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The suspended equity investments, unlisted equity investments,
promissory notes and unlisted bond have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in Note 26 to
the financial statements. The valuation requires the Company to
determine the comparable public companies (peers) and select the
price multiple. In addition, the Company makes estimates about the
discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Company classifies
the fair value of these investments as Level 3.

IFRS 13 requires disclosures relating to fair value measurements
using a three-tier fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in measuring fair values. The level in the fair value
hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised
in its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the
fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustments based
on unobservable inputs, then that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to
the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement,
considering factors specific to the asset or liability. To assess the
significance of a particular input to the entire measurement, the
Company performs a sensitivity analysis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Company is organised into business
units based on the categories of investments. During the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023, the Company has two reportable and
operating segments as follows:

Listed securities — Investments in equity securities listed on relevant
stock exchange.

Unlisted securities — Investments in open-ended fund, limited
partnership fund, private equity securities.

The geographical analysis of Company’s turnover and segment
results by geographical areas for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 is not presented as significant transactions of the
Company are mainly based in Hong Kong.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION REFWER (&
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Company’s results by operating T AREEDEE DB ARA R EEM
segments: EZ 9
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
tmEH FLmEH @it
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE204F12A318LEE
Segment revenue AEHA - 704,411 704,411
Segment results NEEE (1,605,360) (12,731,998) (14,337,358)
Bank interest income BITFEHA 55,509
Unallocated expenses RAEHAE (14,696,682)
Loss before tax BT A E R (28,978,531)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
rhES FELEmER Fehas
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ2023F12A3181LFE
Segment revenue AEUA - 100,000 100,000
Segment results RS (3,193,837 (31,934,209) (35,128,046)

Bank interest income
Unallocated expenses

Loss before tax
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the operating
segments derived revenue from dividend income, interest income
and income from profit guarantee earned from the investments
held by the segments. Segment results represented the net gains
or losses on changes in fair values of listed equity securities, private
equity securities, open-ended fun and, limited partnership fund
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
the corresponding interest income, dividend income as well as
income from profit guarantee earned by each segment without the
allocation of administrative expenses, finance costs, interest income
from bank deposits and the Investment Manager's fees.

As management considers the Company’s nature of business to be
investment trading and there are no major customers, accordingly
no information regarding revenue derived from major customers is
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presented.
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EHRF FEHRESE “at
HKS$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2024 R2024%F12 A31H
Segment assets: DEBEE -
Financial assets at fair value ERVFEEBAERIEL
through profit or loss TREE 3,190 42,956,863 42,960,053
Unallocated assets KoL &EE 22,156,932
Total assets BERE 65,116,985
Liabilities: BfE:
Unallocated liabilities KoBLBE 4,257,563
Total liabilities BELE 4,257,563
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, TEHHER (F)
(Continued)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EWES I LmES @t
HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT BT
As at 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H
Segment assets: DEBEEE
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBBERIIERZ
through profit or loss TRLEE 3,768,200 62,572,264 66,340,464
Unallocated assets ROWEE 28,902,745
Total assets BERE 95,243,209
Liabilities: afE:
Unallocated liabilities RO BEE 5,405,256
Total liabilities BERE 5,405,256
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating BEIE D ER IR RN D EBEELE EIR M
resources between segments, all financial assets at fair value through T BERATESBERIIEZE/M
profit or loss are allocated to reportable segments. All other assets of BEADEZNEHmDE - NAFIKFT
the Company, including right-of-use assets, deposits, prepayments EEMEE(BIECRREEE &ke 1B
and other receivables, amounts due from brokers and cash and - 5038 Ko E A U R A - fﬂﬂliwiﬂk%
cash equivalents, and all liabilities are not allocated to the operating BURReIREEE) RABERET
segments. DEEERESE -
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REVENUE 5. WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WASHTIAT -
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank interest income RITH B A 55,509 26,339
Income from profit guarantee (Note) i MR FE WA (B RE) 704,411 100,000
759,920 126,339
Note: Income from profit guarantee relates to amounts received and receivable in B S « s FOR B S R AR 4 4 A 195 3k P S A0 Ve 7
respect of private equity investments in Hong Kong under the profit guarantee 1%;’5 RN B B RS AR 1 8 R % FE L #9
terms set out in the relevant agreements. HIF o
NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 6. RAFEEBERIEZ2EH
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS EEBERFH
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
tmEH ¥ EmEH #et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BHZE204F 12831 HILFE
Net realised loss on financial assets BEATEBEBRERIEL
at fair value through profit or loss SREECEEBETE (1,067,200) (2,473,993) (3,541,193)
Net unrealised loss on financial assets at fair & A FEB BB EZ
value through profit or loss EHEERERERTE (538,160)  (13,436,409)  (13,974,569)
Total of net realised and unrealised loss SFABRENEERRAE
included in profit or loss FEEERE (1,605,360)  (15,910,402)  (17,515,762)

FEFEEREBR AR / FiR 2024

117



118

Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

The listed shares and unlisted investments are all classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Realised loss on disposals of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to HK$3,541,193 (2023: realised loss of
HK$59,123,751), representing the difference between the financial
assets’ initial carrying amount upon initial recognition (usually their
costs) and disposal consideration amount. Unrealised loss amounted
to HK$13,974,569 (2023: unrealised gain of HK$23,758,566),
comprising change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss for the Year and from reversal of the prior
years' unrealised gains and losses for financial instruments which
were realised in the reporting period.
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6. NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 6. RATFEHEZBERIEZEH
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) EEEEFE(E)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EWES FELEMESH Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE2023F12A31HIEFE
Net realised loss on financial assets BATEEBERIIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss CREECEABHETE (12,420,587)  (46,703,164)  (59,123,751)
Net unrealised gain on financial assets at IR AFEBBEFIIEZ
fair value through profit or loss ERMEERZBRWEFE 9,226,750 14,531,816 23,758,566
Total of net realised and unrealised loss SABRNEEREKRER
included in profit or loss FEEAE (3,193,837)  (32,171,348)  (35,365,185)

EmBEp R ETREADBRE DT
BEBERIIRZSREE -

PERAFEERBIEZCHEE
BB %35 5548 43,541,193 7 7T (2023
F:BEIREIES,123,7518L) B
ZEBMEERVIBERENYIBREE
(BEANTN BEHERESBE CANE
B o R IREIE A 13,974,569 78 7T (2023
o REIRUNEF 23,758,566 78 7T) B
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7.

LOSS BEFORE TAX
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7.

The Company’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

BR %t A1 &5 18

AR 2 BR B AT B B AS AER LA T & IR

R
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(@)  Finance costs (a) BAFERCAS
Interest on other borrowings HiEERNE 30,273 1,944
Interest on promissory note HEHZERFE 55,000 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 71,680 180,296
156,953 182,240
(b)  Other operating expenses by HbgeR%
Staff cost (excluding directors’ BTN (TBE
remuneration) EEE) 2,738,910 4,132,184
Investment management fee WEERE 454,839 600,000
Auditor's remuneration =B AT B &
— audit services —FE iR 450,000 570,000
— other services —H b AR 7% 50,000 L
Minimum operating lease payments in BRAME ZELE
respect of properties HERK 25,010 80,916
Consultancy fees SR 40,000 100,000
Legal and professional fees FERBEATER 1,445,008 2,813,134
Commission and other charges HekEMER 17,318 97,467
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 1,237,700 1,462,791
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEM=
Directors’ remuneration for the Year, disclosed pursuant to the RiE MR BB R AHEHZE383(1)
Listing Rules, Section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong @ - - OEkOHEE A (FEEESF
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of HERDBROIE 2B TFUABRBRE s ANFEE
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: =MemT -
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fees e 2,224,000 2,127,113
Bonus 4T K = -
Contributions to pension schemes MR IR FTEIH - -
2,224,000 2,127,113
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December

2024 as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

8. EEME (&)

HE2024F 1N ANHLEFEZEEN

MamT :

Contributions

to pension
Name of Directors Fees schemes Total
BhE
Espg e HEREEA st
HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee RERLAE 528,000 - 528,000
528,000 - 528,000
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Huang Bin B
(Resigned on 17 September 2024) (FRA20244%9 A17 HEHE) 256,000 = 256,000
Mr. Choi Chit Sze Jackson BRERAE
(Resigned on 16 October 2024) (722024 F 10 B 16 HEHE) 189,677 - 189,677
Mr. Chen Shengjie R E
(Appointed on 16 October 2024) (FA2024F 10 A16 HEZ ) 50,323 - 50,323
Mr. Choi Koon Ming WA EE 240,000 - 240,000
Ms. Xiao Ruimei HInER T 240,000 - 240,000
976,000 - 976,000
Independent non-executive BYEHITES
Directors
Mr. Tong Yun Lung BEERAE 240,000 - 240,000
Mr. Sze Tak Chi iRk 240,000 - 240,000
Mr. Sui Fuxiang BlamiE 240,000 - 240,000
720,000 - 720,000
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EE=M<E (&)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December HE2023F1N2A3IBLEFESESEN
2023 as follows: MemT :
Contributions
to pension
Name of Directors Fees schemes Total
BAR&
Espg Hwe FHEIfR BEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT BT
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Gu Xu BELE
(Resigned on 15 June 2023) (2023456 A 15 AEHE) 164,000 - 164,000
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REELE 528,000 - 528,000
692,000 - 692,000
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Huang Bin B AL 299,250 - 299,250
Mr. Choi Chit Sze Jackson BREBEE 178,500 - 178,500
Mr. Choi Koon Ming BEBRLE 178,500 - 178,500
Wang Dingben FTAREE
(Resigned on 8 December 2023) (7202312 A8 HE(T) - - -
Mr. Chow Yeung Tuen Richard BHAEE
(Resigned on 3 January 2023) (202341 A3 HET) 629 - 629
Ms. Xiao Ruimei Bkt 178,500 - 178,500
835,379 - 835,379
Independent non-executive BYEHITES
Directors
Mr. Chong Ching Hoi HEdlkE
(Resigned on 15 June 2023) (R2023F 6 A 15 EE) 53,300 - 53,300
Mr. Leung Wai Lim RUERELE
(Resigned on 15 June 2023) (R2023F 6 A 15 EE) 53,300 - 53,300
Mr. Sun Boquan BiaznE
(Resigned on 15 June 2023) (R2023F 6 A 15 B EE) 53,300 - 53,300
Mr. Tong Yun Lung EHEEE 178,500 - 178,500
Mr. Sze Tak Chi ML E
(Appointed on 15 June 2023) (FA2023%F 6 A15SHEZT) 130,667 - 130,667
Mr. Sui Fuxiang FErarf i
(Appointed on 15 June 2023) (FA2023%F 6 A15SHEZT) 130,667 - 130,667
599,734 - 599,734




8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)

Fees paid to or for the executive directors are generally emoluments
in respect of those persons’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company. The non-executive and
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for other services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
Year.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)
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8.

EEME (&)

MRMITEENNEE —RBEZFA
TEEARRERH B E A IR & B
T o EXFIRIFMITE S RBILIFMIT
ESNHEEESRREER/ARAE
EMRENEAMR -

FAMBEZTAZRSTHRABNELF
EREEMME R -

E)ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁi (TREEEM

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Salaries, wages and allowances o TERZERL 2,480,006 3,869,312

Bonus TE4L 150,061 150,061
Retirement benefit expenses R RAE IR 2

— Defined contribution plan — ERBHRET & 103,643 112,811

2,733,710 4,132,184

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme in Hong
Kong which complies with the requirements under the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“"MPF") Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to the
MPF scheme follow the MPF Schemes Ordinance.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Company (the employer) and its
Hong Kong employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, as defined in the MPF
Schemes Ordinance. Both the Company and its employees’ monthly
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and contributions
beyond these amounts are voluntary. The contributions are fully and
immediately vested upon payment.

As at 31 December 2024, there were no forfeited contributions
(2023: Nil).

ARRRERFMEITER ([REE]) A
SERPINRTE - EEBRAERB KRG
g - BB RSB EBRES FIF

[#A7T -

=

BERESHE  AAF (EX) RESR
BEESEETHREEEBRA (ER
R B ETEIERM) 5% RIaZaT 8 7E
Ko ARRRIREEES AMEREA1,500%8
ThAEm LR BEE@ESENHKA
BEEME HPRASEHEENES -

MR20245 12 A31H  EHR TR K
(20234 : 4#) -
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. ABRSHFMES
The five highest paid employees during the Year included two AEEhEGRRTHEEREMEES
directors (2023: one director), details of whose remunerations are set (20235F : —REE)  BENFHNFSB
out in Note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the Year of the BN EXIEES - WIHARNTREZEEHEE
remaining three (2023: four) highest paid employees who are neither TTHRABHER T =4 (20234 : NE) &
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: aREMEENAFESMEABLOT
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, wages and allowances e TEMER 2,086,772 3,491,532
Bonus TEAL 108,927 131,961
Retirement benefit expenses RRBARAL
— Defined contribution plan —EFE M GTE 44,618 68,169
2,240,317 3,691,662
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid IEERIETETHAERSFHES
employees whose remuneration fall within the following bands is as HEMBATHENAZAT -
follows:
Number of individuals
AE
2024 2023
2024 20234
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 =2 1,000,00075 70 3 3
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 8 7cE
1,500,000% 7T - 1
3 4
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11. FEES

Administration fee

Amicorp Fund Services Asia Limited (the “Administrator”) is entitled
to receive an administration fee which is calculated based on the
net asset value of the Company at valuation day equal to the rate of
0.11% per annum.

The administration fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of
UsD4,100 plus 7.5% disbursement charge (2023: USD4,000 plus
7% disbursement charge for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31
January 2023 and USD4,100 plus 7.5% disbursement charge from 1
February 2023) and is payable monthly in arrears.

The administration fee for the Year is HK$412,677 (2023:
HK$413,182). As at 31 December 2024, an administration fee of
HK$205,862 (2023: HK$137,851) was payable to the Administrator.

Custodian fee

Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Custodian”) is
entitled to a custodian fee which is calculated based on the net asset
value of the Company at valuation day equal to the rate of 0.04%
per annum. The custodian fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee
of HK$12,500 and is payable monthly in arrears.

The custodian fee for the Year is HK$150,000 (2023: HK$150,000).
As at 31 December 2024, a custodian fee of HK$175,000 (2023:
HK$50,000) was payable to the Custodian.
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11.

Amicorp Fund Services Asia Limited ([ 172
EBADGBREWBITHRERSE  HIBE
HERRERARFTRHEREEFEZ
0.11% =5 -

THERBEXYEGHASKEKERA4,100%T
HN7.5% 2 H 2 (20234 : 2202341 A
1HZ202341A31 HHMME 20234
2A 1B D3I A4,0003F T H7% % H
ERA4100ETTIMTIS5S% X HE) R
ARFAARIZM -

REETHREIRE /412,677 87T (2023
F:413,18278 7T) ° 102024512 A 31
H TR E 2 %5205,8627% T (2023
137,851 BT BN TITHERA °

AEE

LBIRTEFRBRAR(FEAD AR
WEHEEE HRBASVRIZFAAF
REEREBEFELZ0.04%E - EE
EAXR S ARKEER12,5008TTHRK
AREA AR -

AEFAEE A 150,000 T (2023 F :
150,000/ 70) ° FR2024F 12 A318 -
LB # 5 175,000% 7T (2023 4 : 50,000
BT B FREEA -
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11. FEES (Continued)

Management fee

The Investment Manager ceased to serve as the Company'’s
investment manager with effect from 4 October 2024. The
Investment Manager was entitled to a monthly management fee of
HK$50,000 (2023: HK$50,000) and payable monthly in advance.

The investment management fee for the Year is HK$454,839 (2023:
HK$600,000). As at 31 December 2024, nil of the management fee
(2023: HK$200,000) was payable to the Investment Manager.

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The major components of income tax charge for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 are:

11.

12.

HEEEAB2024F 10 A4 BT HE
EARRARREEERA - REBEALGHE
U HR 4 B & 32 & 50,0008 7T (2023 4F ¢
50,0008 70) KBRS AR AT -

KREEREERE 5454,839787T (2023
1 600,000/ 7T) ° 7 20244F 12 A 31
H ENTFTREEEANEREEAT
(2023 £ : 200,000/ 1) °

FriEHiB

HZE2024F 2023 F 12 A1 BILEE
FEHEASXTELS DA :

2024 2023
2024 & 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BIT

Current tax: BVERRR 1A -
Hong Kong Profits tax EERMEH

Deferred tax IRAEFLIE

Tax charge for the year FEHEBERL
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expenses applicable to loss before tax
using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is

Notes to Financial Statements
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12. FTSBIFAX ()

ERAER R ZBRRAERTER 2B
HRAX BIRBERR R E 2 HAR Y

as follows: BRI
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before tax B AT ET 1R (28,978,531) (52,436,843)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BETEHRE16.5% T EMTIE (4,781,458) (8,652,079)
Income not subject to tax AT 2 WA (9,159) (3,797,145)
Expenses not deductible for tax ki 2,305,804 287,930
Tax losses not recognised RIERTLIE E5 18 2,484,813 12,161,294

Tax charge at the effective rate of 16.5%

Cayman Islands

Under the current Cayman Islands law, there is no income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax or any other kinds of tax on
profits or gains or tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax
currently in effect.

Effective from the date of incorporation of the Company, and for
a period of twenty years, no law that is hereafter enacted in the
Cayman Islands imposing any tax on income will be levied on the

Company.

BEBRRE16.5%HEH
AR XX

MERS

B F 2B SRR B A EAMEF
B AR BRI ERIEMEAM
TR 3R A ) X W e A BB A B R AR ©

BARFEMAI BE - TFHEA -
F 2 B B 2 12 B M ) (2T s WA B D0 4E
ARIBRE R G H AR B
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12.

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of the Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the Company will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Company did not generate any assessable
profit for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

At the end of reporting period, the Company has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$700,886,649 (2023: approximately
HK$685,827,178) available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic per share amount is based on the Company’s
loss of HK$28,978,531 (2023: loss of HK$52,436,843) for the Year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the Year
of 1,319,700,274 (2023: 1,319,700,274 ordinary shares).

No diluted earnings per share for both 2024 and 2023 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for
both 2024 and 2023.
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BEEBEMNEHOFEERES - A
A% 8.25% 2 Tt & 3t m A1 & 2,000,000
PETLE AN IE - N0 HR 16.5% 2 B R 8
#92,000,000 % 7T A H3&F 2 B -

B PAZR A RIEL E 2024 F K% 2023412 A
BTHIEFES EEE T MERFEF
WA BN SRR TR E B RSB BE -

RMEBAR XRARERDABES
B #7700,886,6497% 7T (20234 : 4
685,827,178 7T) AI A AN 8 7] A R Y
REERACEF] o ER R R AT
AITEAIME - WA TR B EERIELER
BEE -

AAREBRESRISE ARG
BRER

ERERSEUNLARR LT REZSEE
AEAE A FE ARG F51828,978,531
7T (20234 : F 852,436,843 %8
T)RAFEEETEARMET
9 801,319,700,2740% (2023 4 :
1,319,700,274 I L i@AR) st B/ H -
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14. LEASES 14. HE
The Company as a lessee KRATMERABEA
The Company has a lease contract for office premises used in ARRpEBLERERAOBRAMETE
its operations. Lease of office premises has lease term of 3 years MEGH -WAMERENHBAE=F
(2023: 3 years). Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning (2023%F : =4F) - — i 5 - "AFT
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Company. The lease AEARABINIIATEZRSHEBEEE
contract includes extension or termination options which are not E-HEAGNH BTN KR ILEERE
considered to be exercisable by the Company. A BEEEERATIAANRRITE -
(a) Right-of-use asset (a) FRAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Company’s right-of-use assets and RAREREEERMERTFAZ
the movements during the Year are as follows: EJRUNNE
Office premises
N 3
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
As at 1 January ®1A1H 1,419,547 518,327
Additions NE - 2,364,011
Depreciation charge ERX (1,237,700) (1,462,791)
As at 31 December ®12A31H 181,847 1,419,547

FEFEEREBR AR / FiR 2024 129



Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

14. LEASES (Continued) 14. € (&)
(b) Lease liability (b) HEE®E
The carrying amounts of lease liability and the movements RAFEAREAERABEREY
during the Year are as follows: (I
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1ATHEEE 1,457,930 536,983
New leases MEE - 2,364,011
Paid and Payable B KRR FRIE (1,260,031) (1,443,064)
197,899 1,457,930
Analysed into: DI
Current portion mENER 197,899 1,260,032
Non-current portion ERBE D = 197,898
197,899 1,457,930
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (0 RERBIRBHEEENSENAT
are as follow:
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on lease liability HEBERE 71,680 180,296
Depreciation charge of FERAREENERX
right-of-use asset 1,237,700 1,462,791
Lease payments not included in the Kt ATHEBEHED
measurements of lease liability EN=ENEAN 25,010 80,916
Total amount recognised in I FER W 4258
profit or loss 1,334,390 1,724,003
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to JERRMEE&ENINEFHE
lease liabilities was 8.95% (2023: 8.59%). 2 {57 % 58.95% (2023 F :

8.59%) °
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15. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 15. B& - AN RIE R HE MR
RECEIVABLES AND AMOUNT DUE FROM 15 AR FE W AR 42 A 8
BROKERS

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current: FEE
Deposits Ee - 200,000
Current: e :
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIE - e Rk
receivables (Note) Hoh W ko (P 5E) 893,418 1,623,057
Amount due from brokers JE W 48 42 A FRIE 8,074,074 8,350,713
8,967,492 9,973,770
Note: As at 31 December 2024, the prepayments and other receivables mainly MIGE © 7202412 A31 8 - FEAT5RI8 K H fib FE UL
comprised the payment in advance of legal fee and deposits amounting to NEBFZEFEENERERRESD A
HK$300,000 and HK$200,000 respectively. 300,000 7% 7T } 200,000 7 7T, ©
As at 31 December 2023, the prepayments and other receivables mainly 2023512 A31 8 - FE IR K& H th fE Uk
comprised the payment in advance of professional fee and deposits amounting HETEERREENEXERRRE DR
to HK$670,000 and HK$ 126,740 respectively. 670,000 % 7T & 126,740 7T ©
As at the end of the reporting period, none of the above receivables AR BASR - b i Uk 3k I8 3 4 18 B ok,
is either past due or impaired. ME ©
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

BAFEZEBERIIR2 SR

BE

2024 2023

2024 5 20234

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Listed equity securities — Hong Kong ITTEEESF B 3,190 3,768,200
Investments in private equity — TERFLERE—

British Virgin Islands REBRLHS 6,627,000 9,724,000
Investments in private equity — Hong Kong KERILERE-—FB 18,073,000 25,705,000
Investments in Fund — Hong Kong KERE S BB 18,256,863 27,143,264

42,960,053 66,340,464

The fair values of the listed equity securities are determined based
on the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant stock
exchanges at the end of the reporting period.

The Company invested in private equities which are not quoted in an
active market. The fair values of the private equities at 31 December
2024 and 2023 have been arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out as at that date by independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Company. The valuation of the
investments in these private entities used valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow projections and adjusted net assets
value methods, and are within Level 3 of fair value hierarchy. The
most significant unobservable inputs in the valuation methodologies
included the discount rate on the investment and forecasted future
cash flows.
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the financial assets also included
investments in two unlisted funds, which are measured at fair
value and was categorised as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The
information of two invested unlisted funds as follows:

Goldstone 1 LPF (“Goldstone 1”), formerly Gransing 1 LPF, is a
limited partnership fund. Goldstone 1 seeks to achieve maximum
capital appreciation over the life of the Limited Partnership Fund
through equity investments, specifically, investments in IPOs
on securities to be listed on the Stock Exchange and in private
placements by companies listed on the Stock Exchange. On 12
December 2022, the Company disposed the listed equities of
approximately HK$11,748,358. The consideration was satisfied by
the subscription of sharing equity interest in the Goldstone 1. Upon
the completion of disposal, the Company classified the proceeds
received as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair value of the investment in Goldstone 1 is based on net
asset value. As at 31 December 2024, the investment portfolio of
Goldstone 1 were entities listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong.

SWK Dynamic OFC (“SWK") is private open-ended fund company
with variable capital and long-biased focusing on Hong Kong and
China equity market. The fair value of the investment in SWK
is based on the net asset value. As at 31 December 2024, the
investment portfolio of SWK were entities listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong.

Net unrealised loss on financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$13,974,569 (2023: gain of HK$23,758,566) has been
recognised in profit or loss.

The Company does not own or control more than 20% of the voting
rights in any one of these listed and unlisted equity investments. In
the opinion of the directors, the Company is not able to exercise
any significant influence on the financial and operating policies of
these investee companies, and all of these listed and unlisted equity
investments are not regarded as associates of the Company and are
accounted for as financial assets through profit or loss for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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16. RAFEHEBRBIIKR2EH

EE (8|

R2024F 128318 @MEENBIE
RREFLTESNEE  HEATE
AEYHOEAATESERZE_HA-
WENMEFELMESHERDOT

E—RAEREEES (&A% 81
BEK—RAREEES) R—EARE
BES 2L VETEERAKREIRE -
R I E RSB X BT _E T B 5 8
BRAAABERBIAM ETMARNILE
RE RERGEESHEEGFESHA
EIRFAWERIGE 7R 2022612 712
B AAEHE EmR#EL 11,748,358
B REDURESA RN IR
RS - NEEEHTEKE - KA A
BB EIRBRIBES ERIEAFERT A
BEMESMEE -

ReEA —SRIEENRAFETEREEZF
BE:tE - 2024F12A318 &A%
MREHEEBEETABIMETHELR -

SWK Dynamic OFC ([ SWK ) 7 A £ 5 5
AESNR HEEIEERARRBKRE -
EFREARPEBRETS - RSWK
BRENAFEDRBEEEFEFE - R
2024912 A318  SWKHEEHEAE &
REBBI ETHEEE -

BERAFEEREBERIIEZEREENR
IR E5 185 58 /413,974,569 7% 7T (2023
4 : W35 23,758,566 8 70) BB FER

PANNIST RN 51370 Sl 2t B o ] =
M RIELEMIRIEIE A BB 20% FIREE -
BEERE  RARAFIREHZEERRER
AN B REERREETWNEATE
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NBILEFE  2PZFLTRIELTR
RREB TR BAR RN E QR -
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17. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 17. AR RAEEZ2FERE 2 H15
BY THE COMPANY

Particulars of investments held by the Company as at 31 December R2024F 128318 ARRIBRE L™
2024 disclosed pursuant to the Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as RABENEFREEMBERENGTEN
follows: N

Net asset/ Dividend
(liability) received/

Proportion of attributable  receivable % of gross
investee's Market to the during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company the Year Company
LN REEE
BEHARE EhEE/ BR/EK AT
FrRELR%ER RHnE AIERLA 28 [ (B8 ke HBEEEAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TAL TAL TERL TATL
Financial assets at fair vale through
profit or loss
BATEFERZF EBEE
Listed equity securities
- Hong Kong
Irgggs-58
Strong Petrochemical Holdings Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited 0.00% 4 3 13 - 0.00
Limited (“Strong Petrochemical") is a Hong Kong-

hased investment holding company
principally engaged in the trading of oil
products. For the six months ended 30
June 2024, the unaudited loss attributable
to shareholders of Strong Petrochemical
was approximately HK$8,750,000 and
the unaudited net liabilities attributable
to shareholders was approximately
HK$1,284,433,000.

BRABIERERAR BRRREIERERAA RAMR
I)R-BESUREENREERA
A IRRERAERES AEU
F6ANAIAER  BRABICIR
REBREEABROA87500007%
T MRREGAIERREFENOR
1,284,433, 00075 7L ©
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B H5 Rk B et

17. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 17. AR RAEEZ2FERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
Net asset/ Dividend
(liability) received/
Proportion of attributable  receivable % of gross
investees Market to the during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company the Year Company
] REEE
RRfRE EhEE/ BR/BM HART
FREAAAR RHKE ARERLA B [l (RE) 5 ke HEEEAM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THL TEn TEn
Financial assets at fair vale through
profit or loss (Continueq)
RATEFBRENFLEREE
(£)
Private equity security -
British Virgin Islands
AERERS-ABELES
Gransing Financial Group Limited Provision of quality brokerage, corporate 18.08% 46,371 6,627 14,508 = 10.18
finance, asset management and financial
adviser services to institutional and
individual investors in Hong Kong and
China through its subsidiaries
BReREERRAA RERRPEREERENEL TREE
MLAREERERESL A5RE
EERERMBERRY
Private equity securities -
Hong Kong
AERERS-FX
iPro Financial Press Limited Engaged in financial printing services 19.97% 34999 15,350 15,451 - 2357
g HEHEENRIR
Gransing Finance Limited Engaged in money lending business 19.90% 16,876 2,123 4516 r 4.18
in Hong Kong
AREEERAT REBNERERH
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B H5 Rk B et

17. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 17. AR RAEE 2T ERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
Net asset/ Dividend
(liability) received/
Proportion of attributable ~ receivable % of gross
investee's Market to the during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of fund capital owned Cost Value Company the Year Company
AR REEE
RRfRE 35174 Bk/  HELT
FRENTER FHME ARERLA B Wl (B #E EURE #EEEAM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TR Thr ThL
Goldstone 1 LPF Limited partnership fund 4363% 19,785 9,580 9,580 - 1471
th-SARABAS FRa%EL
SWK Dynamic OFC Open-ended fund 10.59% 9,947 8,677 8,677 - 1333
liE¥-%
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17. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 17. AR RAEE 2T ERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
Particulars of investments held by the Company as at 31 December R2023F 128318 ARRIBRE L™
2023 disclosed pursuant to the Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as RAENEFREEMBERENGTEN
follows: N
Net asset/ Dividend
(liability) received/
Proportion of attributable  receivable % of gross
investee's Market to the during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company the Year Company
LN REEE
BEARE 35174 B/ AR
FrRELA%ER RBME AIERLA 28 Wl (BF)3E EYRE #EERAM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TERL TERL
Financial assets at fair vale through
profit or loss
FATEFERENE P REE
Listed equity securities -
Hong Kong
Igags-54
Tasty Concepts Holding Limited Tasty Concepts Holding Limited ("Tasty")is 343% 1320 1848 (660) - 194

an investment holding company mainly
engaged in the operation of Japanese
ramen restaurants. For the six months
ended 30 September 2023, the unaudited
loss attributable to shareholders of Tasty
was approximately HK$3,754,000 and
the unaudited net liabilities attributable to
shareholders of Tasty as at 30 September
2023 was approximately HK$1,916,000.

EZRBRERAT EZRBRERAR ([E2R)) A—FR
ABRAF TERZEANERNE
B HENBFIANELAER
B RBRRRENAGERERNA
37540007 HEZ KRR 20235F
IANBZEEREELABRENA
1,916,000/ «
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B H5 Rk B et

17. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 17. AR RAEEZ2FERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
Net asset/ Dividend
(liability) received/
Proportion of attributable  receivable % of gross
investees Market to the during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company the Year Company
] REEE
RRfRE EhgE/ B/ AR
FREAAAR RHKE AREALA B [l (RERE  BURE AEERAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THL TEn TEn
Financial assets at fair valle through
profit or loss (Continueq)
RATEFBRENE L EREE
(£)
Hanvey Group Holdings Limited Hanvey Group Holdings Limited (“Hanvey”) 140% 627 739 50 - 0.78

Is an investment holding company
principally engaged in the design and
development, manufacturing and
distribution of watch products. For
the six months ended 30 June 2023,
the unaudited profit attributable to
shareholders of Hanvey was approximately
HK$1,318,000 and the unaudited net
assets attributable to shareholders
of Hanvey as at 30 June 2023 was
approximately HK$37,108,000.
EREEARARLA BREBERERAR(EE]) A-F&
ERRAF TREERIRAE &
ERDHTRER - BENBFOA0
BIEAEA - ERREEENAEES
EHI8R13180005T - MEERER
NBE6ANELEEAGEGEES
437,108 00087 ¢
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B H5 Rk B et

17. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 17. AR RAEEZ2FERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
Net asset/ Dividend
(liability) received/
Proportion of attributable  receivable % of gross
investees Market to the during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company the Year Company
] REEE
RRfRE EhgE/ B/ AR
FREAAAR RHKE AREALA B [l (RERE  BURE AEERAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THL TEn TEn
Financial assets at fair vale through
profit or loss (Continueq)
RATEFBRENFLEREE
(£)
Lerado Financial Group Company ~ Lerado Financial Group Company Limited 135% 79 657 8,980 - 0.69
Limited ("Lerado”) is an investment holding

company principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of medical
products and plastic toys business. For
the six months ended 30 June 2023,
the unaudited loss attributable to
shareholders of Lerado was approximately
HK$20,338,000 and the unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders
of Lerado as at 30 June 2023 was
approximately HK$665,152,000.
EXeREBERAT BhcREEARDA(BR]) B—FR
BERAE FENEHEREEER
ERREBRARS HEND3F6 A
NBEAER  BRRREGOREE
BEBNA2033800087 - TR
RRNBE6A0EEEAEENE
BB R 665,152,000 °
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B H5 Rk B et

17. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 17. AR RAEEZ2FERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
Net asset/ Dividend
(liability) received/
Proportion of attributable  receivable % of gross
investees Market to the during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company the Year Company
] REEE
RRfRE EhgE/ B/ AR
FREAAAR RHKE AREALA B [l (RERE  BURE AEERAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THL TEn TEn
Financial assets at fair valle through
profit or loss (Continueq)
RATEFBRENE L EREE
(£)
China New Consumption Group China New Consumption Group Limited 0.67% 505 524 700 - 0.55
Limited ("China New Consumption”)is an

investment holding company principally
engaged in foundation contractor
primarily specialising in bored piling
works as wel as other foundation works.
For the six months ended 30 September
2023, the unaudited loss attributable to
shareholders of China New Consumption
was approximately HK$1,312,000 and
the unaudited net assets attributable to
shareholders of China New Consumption
as at 30 September 2023 was
approximately HK$104,835,000
hEHEERERRAT hEMHERERRAT ((PEMEE])
A-FRERRRA  TENENENS
TRUREMBETRATMHERE
£ BENBFIANALAER
hEHERR RO ASERERY
B1312000/E T - At EATA B RAR
NBEIANAEEABEREES
{E415104,835,000% 7
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B H5 Rk B et

17. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD
BY THE COMPANY (Continued)

17. ?IK’L\;E%EZIEEEZ%%
]

Net asset/ Dividend
(liability) received/

Proportion of attributable  receivable % of gross
investees Market to the during  assets of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company the Year Company
527 REEE
RRfRE EhgE/ B/ AR
FREAAAR RHKE AREALA B [l (RERE  BURE AEERAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THL TEn TEn
Private equity security -
British Virgin Islands
AERERS-ABELES
Gransing Financial Group Limited Provision of quality brokerage, corporate 18.08% 46,371 9,724 20,900 = 10.21
finance, asset management and financial
adviser services to institutional and
indivicual investors in Hong Kong and
main land China through its subsidiaries
BReREERRAA RERRPENLERENE
RAMEERAARAZRABESL -
PRRE HEERRMBERRE
Private equity securities -
Hong Kong
AERERS-EH
iPro Financial Press Limited Engaged in financial printing services 19.97% 34999 17,602 25,600 < 1848
ESnRaRERAA R
Gransing Finance Limited Engaged in money lending business 19.90% 16,876 8,103 12,900 = 851
in Hong Kong
BREERRAR e
Goldstone 1 LPF Limited partnership fund 59.32% 23,748 16,858 16,860 - 1770
Sh-RERARES ERabise
SWK Dynamic OFC Open-ended fund 1221% 12,163 10,285 10,280 - 10.80
RiES
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18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. BERBEEEE
2024 2023
2024 & 20234
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Cash at banks BITRE 13,007,593 17,309,428
13,007,593 17,309,428

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Details of impairment assessment of bank balances is
set out in Note 28.

19. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the other payables and accruals
were non-interest-bearing and had an average term of less than
twelve months.

20. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY

As at 31 December 2024, the amount due to a related party
represented accrued lease payables. The amount was non-interest
bearing and repayment on demand.

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2024
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20.
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Notes to Financial Statements

P e

a
21. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 21. BR#ETE
The Company’s Share Option Scheme was adopted on 1 June 2015, RIER 2015 5 528 HER 1T 2 IR 5
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary A LEBAZERREER  ARAER
general meeting held on 28 May 2015. REETEIN 20154 6 A 1 BB -
The limit of the number of securities which may be issued upon RIE R AT 8 M (T ] H b BB AR A 51 2
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised BREBEERFTECHRITEBREES
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not BITREETETCESFREBRE T
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company in BHRBARA TR EBITHBERNES
issue from time to time. Z230% ©
Details of the share options granted by the Company under the KA ARFERBEERETEIRAQF
Share Option Scheme to the employees of the Company and the EERLCHERERMSEREZEZS
movement in such holdings during the Year were as follows: FEIBAT
Number of share options
BREHE
Closing
price of
the listed
seurities
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding before the
Name or asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat date of
category of Date of Exercise Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December during during during 31 December % of options
participant grant period price 203 the year the year the year 2023 the Year the Year the Year 2024 issued share granted
s
R YL YITES HBRE
SEAER 1818 AEE 18318 AEE RANA BRORH  RHAHH
] RHRH i3] bl:d WATE  AEERE  AERAE  RE/AM HATE ARERE  AFETE  HE/&M WATE Bl HbTE
Enploees 1972019 19772013-18/772029 0 8036 - N X I AR 4 - - -4 0304 0082
8 WI9ETA19E  01957A19BF
9575185
Enplyee 5001 WS01-23502 02 7790648 - N ETT - - - - i . 028
k2 WIESEUE WESEUEE
WAESFDA
15822974 - S amer) 405183 - - Y AT 0304
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 0.2447 - - 02341 02759 - - - 0.2759
METHHEE (BT
* The exercise price and the amount of the share options had been adjusted due * BRENITEERSEEER2022F6 A%
to the rights issue completed in June 2022. BREV AR MR A -
# The outstanding options are fully vested upon granted. # HMARITENBERENRERNT2HE -
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B H5 Rk B et

21.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of 8,030,326 share options (as adjusted) granted
during the year ended 31 December 2019 under the Share Option
Scheme on 19 July 2019 was determined to be approximately
HK$1,117,000 with reference to a valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuer using a binomial model.

The inputs into the model included grant date adjusted share price
of HK$0.2595, expected volatility of 65.51% determined based
on historical volatility of the Company’s shares for the past 510
weeks, expected option life of ten years, no expected dividend and
estimated risk-free interest rate of 1.41%.

The fair value of 38,963,240 share options (as adjusted) granted
during the year ended 31 December 2021 under the Share Option
Scheme on 24 May 2021 and 30 August 2021 were determined
to be approximately HK$660,000 and HK$2,233,000 respectively
with reference to a valuation performed by an independent firm of
professional valuer using a binomial model.

The inputs into the model included grant date adjusted share price
of HK$0.2126 and HK$0.1719 respectively, expected volatility of
71.91% and 71.70% determined based on historical volatility of
the Company’s shares for the past 156 weeks, expected option life
of three years, no expected dividend and estimated risk-free interest
rate of 0.26% and 0.31% respectively.

At 31 December 2024, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 4,015,163 (2023: 4,015,163),
representing 3.56% (2023: 3.56%) of the shares of the Company in
issue at that date.
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21.

B HERT & (&)

HE2019F 12 A31HIEFE - 72019
F7R19BBEEKRE SR DO
8,030,326 fn FE AR EE) A TE (AEFHEE) )
2E-—RBIUNFNBEMBEMEAS
EABENETHHEEE A4 1,117,000
BT o

ZEAME ABERERTL B BN
FHEER% (8 0.2595 87T - TEHAK 1R 65.51%
(TIRBARRTIRG BES10 BHE 2K
EmEE)  TEAEREFHI0F W&
TEARRR B R AT R F K 1.41% o

HE2021F 12831 BIEFE - 72021
F5A24H 202148 A30 HIREER
Wt 217 K 1) 38,963,240 10 BE IR HE (4538
B)NRNTFEDNBE-—RKBIARNEE
HEMEAZEARXETHEEET
A5 R#7660,000 % 7T ) 2,233,000 4T °

ZEANGARBELEAELBH®
KABKRESRS A /021268 7T
F0.1719% L - EHEIE71.91% &
71.70% (T3 R IBE AR R Bl IR0 R i 1E 156
RAESIRRMET) - T8RRI EF H
36 - WREFBHAMR S RAFHERRF XD
B A0.26% % 0.31% °

720244 12 B 31 B IRIBEREAEIE
BERERITENBRENKROEE &
4,015,163 % (2023 4F : 4,015,163 %) °
HERZAARREEHITRDE3.56%
(20234 : 3.56%) °
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+| RN
AR 15 Mot
22. ISSUED CAPITAL 22. EBTRAE
Number of Nominal
shares amount
KRR H{E
HK$
BT
Authorised ETE
Ordinary shares of nominal amount 2024 F 2023412 A 31 H
HK$0.04 each at 31 December 2024 BREE0.048 T2 LBk
and 2023 25,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid BEITRER
Ordinary shares of nominal amount R 2024 F 2023412 A 31 H
HK$0.04 each at 31 December 2024 BREE.04E Lz LBk
and 2023 1,319,700,274 52,788,011
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as AR AEB BT -
follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
2R [B):£6) %)
RHEE N RER st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2023, M2023F1H1H
31 December 2023 and 2023F 124318 %
31 December 2024 202412 A31H 1,319,700,274 52,788,011 256,798,043 309,586,054
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B H5 Rk B et

23.

24,

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the net assets
of the Company as at 31 December 2024 of HK$60,859,422 (2023:
HK$89,837,953) and on 1,319,700,274 ordinary shares being
in issue as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 1,319,700,274 ordinary
shares).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In addition to the related party transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Company had the following
transactions with related parties during the Year:

Investment Manager — Evergrande Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited

The Investment Manager is responsible to manage, supervise and
direct the investment, disposition and re-investment of the assets of
the Company, on a discretionary basis, but subject to the investment
objective and restrictions of the Company. The Investment
Manager is entitled to receive management fees for its respective
services in terms of the agreement dated 21 December 2023 and
terminated on 3 October 2024. Details of the fees to which the
Investment Manager is entitled are provided in Note 11 to the
financial statements. The Directors consider the key management
personnel of the Company comprise of its Board of Directors, whose
remuneration is shown in Note 8 to the financial statements.
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23.

24,

BREEFE

BREEFEDZAREN2024F12 A
31 A §Y & E #1E 60,859,422 7 7t (2023
% :89,837,953 8 7L) KN 2024F 12
A31BE#1T&iBAK1,319,700,274 %
(20234F :1,319,700,274 A% & 3@ I%) =t

s
H o
>t

BREBL RS

PR 1E 7% 5 765 SR o L At BB 40 R A A B
FRBON - RRRRAGFZ EBEARE 7 &
GENESE

REEBA-EARS (FEB)ERLQA

REEBEANBEUZERBEE 18 -
EBERETRARREENRE BER
BIRE  WASARANKEBZERE
KR I EEIR AL 2023412 421 H
HEIIH 2024 10 B3 B R IEM 515
FoBERHERENSERBWEREE
B -BHEKREERAGREDRNE R
BHRYBREMET N -EERAE K
RAEBEBAEBBEEESENE -
BEZHWR T BHRERMES -
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 25. REFE2EMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EeBRTARNREHRZREEBENR
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: N
2024 2024 F
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets Financial
at fair value assets at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BAYE R
EBRBHIE AR B BR 2
ZEREE EREE st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

Financial assets measured at amortised  JA#E $5 5% 2N 5t 2 H)

cost: SREE

— Financial assets included in deposits ~ —sT A& KIS RIS E - 200,000 200,000
— Other receivables —H e GRIR - — =
- Amount due from brokers —EMAER 42 ARUR - 8,074,074 8,074,074
~ Cash and cash equivalents -RelkReEE - 13,007,593 13,007,593

Financial assets at fair value through R AFEBBIERTIE 2

profit or loss: TREE:
— Financial assets at fair value - EBAVTEFAERYIE
through profit or loss ZEMEE 42,960,053 - 42,960,053
42,960,053 21,281,667 64,241,720
Financial liabilities sREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
1268 R A B R
ZEmEE
HK$
BT
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: E#ER AT ENSMEE
— Other payables and accruals —H B RIE R EE B A 3,459,664
— Amount due to a related party — T BB 75 FRIR 600,000
4,059,664
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

2023

Financial assets

25. REREs S/ I A (&)

2023 F

THEE

Financial assets Financial
at fair value assets at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
b/ | R
BRBHIER AR 2
JERMEE CREE BEr
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets measured at amortised ~ JA#E #5505+ 2 )
cost: CTREE:
— Financial assets included in deposits ~ —&T AR & 0 & RVEE - 326,740 326,740
— Amount due from brokers — RS 40 AFRIA - 8,350,713 8,350,713
— Cash and cash equivalents -BehBeEE - 17,309,428 17,309,428
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFEBIEZIIEZ
profit or loss: CREE:
— Financial assets at fair value —BATEERERIIE
through profit or loss JEREE 66,340,464 - 66,340,464
66,340,464 25,986,881 92,327,345
Financial liabilities SRAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R RS BR
ZEEEeE
HK$
BIT
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: DEHEXATENEREE -
— Other payables and accruals —Hib N FRIENERTE H 2,847,326
— Amount due to a related party — FESTRAES 5 70 1,100,000
3,947,326
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

26. AV ETE

Fair value hierarchy (a) AFEER
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining AARIRANTEREERERS
and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments: BT EAEMATE:
31 December 2024
2024%12831H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5% F-® E=4 st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value BRATEBERERFIRL
through profit or loss: PRAE:
Listed il
— Equity securities —RHEF 3,190 - - 3,190
Unlisted kL
~ Private equities - EKiE - - 24,700,000 24,700,000
- Funds - a - 18,256,863 - 18,256,863
3,190 18,256,863 24,700,000 42,960,053
31 December 2023
2023124318
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-4 B E=R Fobe
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT o o
Financial assets at fair value BRATEERERFIR
through profit or loss: SRAE:
Listed il
- Equity securities —ERES 3,768,200 - - 3,768,200
Unlisted FLm
~ Private equities -fLERE - 35,429,000 35,429,000
- Funds -E% - 27,143,264 27,143,264
3,768,200 27,143,264 35,429,000 66,340,464

When fair values of listed and quoted investments at the
reporting date are based on quoted market prices in active
market, without any deduction for transaction costs, the
instruments are within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

HE EMARERENBEEHZ
NP EARZERT IS L ™I5 R
BRERE (THIRERRZKA)
QBT AURERE & -
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

When fair values of equity securities at the reporting date
represent quoted prices in market that are considered less
than active or consensus prices derived by third parties using
valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data, those equity securities
are included within Level 2 of the hierarchy.

For all other financial instruments, the Company determines
fair value using valuation techniques.

Valuations are the responsibility of the Board of Directors of
the Company. The valuation of investments in the suspended
listed equity securities, the private equity securities are
performed by management of the Company and reviewed by
the investment committee of the Company. The investment
committee considers the appropriateness of the valuation
method and inputs, and may request alternative valuation
methods applied to support the valuation arising from the
method chosen. Any changes in valuation methods are
discussed and agreed with the Company’s Board of Directors.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Company invested in unlisted funds. The fair value of the
unlisted funds are based on the net asset value with reference
to the prices of underlying investment portfolio quoted by fund
administrator. The investment portfolios of the fund are based
on the quoted closing price in active market of listed equity
securities, and are within Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
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(a)

DFEER (R

HEREFN IS B Rz AFER
RETNERMISNERE  RE=T
ERAEERN (EEEHAES
AERIEEATSHETER)

SHEESE  AZSEEEFBER
EWME M-

HAEHMERIAMmMS - AQA
ERAERMEEAFE-

HEDBARAREFENET-
iz tmiEaES  LERER S
ZERENBEIAARABERE
T UTEBHARRREZBEER
Bl - WEZB@ERMGEETNE NG
AEHEEN  NEEREAEM
BETEAIFRIEMER AN
EHWGE - EABETEZEEHY
RARREZEHIRAE -

HZE 20244 % 2023412 A31H
HFE ARERERFELTE
o RS LETESHRAFETIE
SEHRSERARIMABKRER
AEREEBBEEEFEET - Ed
WERE THER ETREZEENE
BTSSRI EETE - WARA
FEERZ2E_HA -



26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Company invested in private equities which are not quoted
in an active market. The fair value of the private equities as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out as at that date by independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Company
and estimated by the management. The valuation of the
investments in these private entities used discounted cash
flows (“DCF") projections under income approach based on
estimates made by management of the Company or adjusted
net assets value (“Adjusted NAV") method under cost
approach as appropriate and are within Level 3 of fair value
hierarchy.

The Company invested in unlisted bond which are not quoted
in an active market.

A DCF analysis involves forecasting the appropriate future cash
flow streams over an appropriate period and then discounting
it back to a present value at an appropriate discount rate.
This discount rate should consider the time value of money,
inflation, and the risk inherent in ownership of the asset or
security interest being valued.

The Adjusted NAV method calls for a summation of the fair
values of all assets belonging to an entity and a reduction of
that aggregate by the fair values of that entity’s total liabilities.
The fair value is represented by the adjusted book value of
total assets net of liabilities owed to any person other than the
beneficial owners of the subject company, after adjusting for
any necessary discounts or premiums to the book values of the
assets and liabilities to reflect their market values.
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 26. AR EFE (&)

152

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) 2FESH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable EATTBFRBAENEEBEH -
inputs — Level 3 E=R

Relationship of

Key unobservable
Valuation unobservable Value of inputs to
Description Fair value techniques inputs input  fair value
TERTEE TABEZHAEH
A AVE HERM BAE WAEEE ATEZBE
HK$'000
TER
As at 31 December 2024
R20245 128318
Unlisted equity securities 21,977  Discounted cash Discount rate for 13.92% to  Higher the discount
flows discounting 14.92% rate, lower the fair
estimated cash value
flows
FLmERES HERRATR BRMARERE 1392%% HHEEPE ATE
ZERBE 1492%  #E
Discount rate 15.70%  Higher the discount
for lack of rate of lack of
marketability marketability, lower
the fair value
i SPATRENY iked=0 15.70%  BRATHREILR
LIRS BREYE LFE
itk
Unlisted equity securities 2,723 Adjusted net assets  Discount rate 15.70%  Higher the discount
value method for lack of rate of lack of
marketability marketability lower
the fair value, and
vice versa
FLMERES AREERENE BROTERBELN 15.70% RO THREILL
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(a)
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26. A ¥{EFTE (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) 2FESH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable EATHBSHAENEERH -
inputs - Level 3 (Continued) FE=AK (&)
Relationship of
Key unobservable
Valuation unobservable Value of inputs to
Description Fair value techniques inputs input  fair value
FETTEE TABERAESR
A AYE HEREN WAE WAEEE ATEZBE
HKS$'000
TER
As at 31 December 2023
R20235£12A31H
Unlisted equity securities 27,327 Discounted cash Discount rate for 13.92% to  Higher the discount
flows discounting 14.92% rate, lower the fair
estimated cash value
flows
MR ES BRETR EREARERE 13.92%% HERX#s ATE
ZERE 1492%  #iE
Discount rate 15.70% to  Higher the discount
for lack of 30% rate of lack of
marketability marketability, lower
the fair value
BROTERAMESN 1570%%F30% HROTSRAESD
iR AREES  ATFE
IR
Unlisted equity securities 8,102 Adjusted netassets  Discount rate 15.70%  Higher the discount
value method for lack of rate of lack of
marketability marketability lower
the fair value, and
vice versa
FEmHERES ABBEZERE WOTEREMLE 15.70% RO THRA L
A % BEREYE  ATE
B - R TR
PEFTEEIREBRARR] / 3R 2024
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 26. AV{EETE (8)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZSH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable BEATFJBEEWAEBYEEER —
inputs — Level 3 (Continued) E=4k(E)
The fair value measurements of the investments in private LERE EEFEEz LMERE
equities, suspended listed equity securities, promissory F AAEBRETESFREZA
notes and listed bond are recognised as Level 3 fair value FEFEERABE =R TETE -
measurements.
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during AEEE=ZPBAFEFEZHM
the Year are as follows: K
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January Bm1A1A 35,429,000 57,416,000
Purchases BB = -
Sell s - -
Settlement wE - -
Transfer from level 3 to level 1 RE="DERZFE—R - -
Total loss recognised in profit and loss A Bz NEER 2 B 1B 45 (10,729,000) (21,987,000)
At 31 December ®12A31H 24,700,000 35,429,000
For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the total RIERAFEERERVEZC/RE
gains or losses recognised, including those for assets held at EME BERzBamkEEesE
the end of reporting period, are presented in profit or loss (BERAREPRMBZSEEEL
in “net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or W EHR) TREBERNEY AR
loss”. ATEERERIK EREER

BFE] -
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 26. AR EFE (&)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZSH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable BEATFJBEEWAEBYEEER —
inputs — Level 3 (Continued) E=4k(E)

RAFEE  F—REE_RRFE
FFEZEYEER  BE=ARQF
EFfFEXEFIALED -

During the Year, these were no transfer of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into
or out of Level 3 fair value measurement.

KA B R 2024F 2 2023F 12 A
31 BWEIMARAFEA SN
BE-

The Company did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

27. NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 27. BERERNE

(a) Major non-cash transactions () FEFERELEXRS

RAFEE AARLEE@EREA
EMEHEELHNEAREER
FHEBGBRE (20234 - FHA#E
BE236401M BT MNEHERRE
2,364,011 87T) °

During the Year, the Company have no additions to right-of-
use asset and lease liabilities in respect of lease arrangements
for office premises (2023: right-of-use asset HK$2,364,011
and lease liabilities HK$2,364,011).

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) REBMEZH 2 EBEE
Lease liability HEAE 2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January ®n1A1H 1,457,930 536,983
New leases entered BRIVFHEE - 2,364,011
Reclassify to amount due to ENOBEEN BB
a related party SKIE - (900,000)
Reclassify to accruals ENOBEREAER - (105,840)
Interest expense recognised EERMEBHAX 71,680 180,297
Repayment of principal portion of EBEEHEEBENETESE D
lease liabilities (1,331,711) (617,521)
At 31 December ®12HA31H 197,899 1,457,930
FERIFTEEIRER/R AR / Fik 2024 155
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Company’s objective in managing risk is the creation and
protection of shareholders’ value. The ultimate responsibility in
defining and maintaining the Company’s risk control framework,
setting the appropriate risk parameters for the Company and in
continuously monitoring compliance of the Company’s portfolio with
the investment objective and policies and investment restrictions lies
with the Board of Directors of the Company, that will be advised by
the Investment Manager.

A risk committee consisting of executive directors and an
independent non-executive directors has been formed to monitor
the operational and portfolio risks to the Company. The risk
committee will monitor the Investment Manager including reviewing
whether the investment objective and policies and investment
restrictions are being followed by the Investment Manager. In case
of any deviation, the risk committee will discuss deviations with the
Investment Manager immediately and monitor any agreed remedial
action. For all material deviations the risk committee will formulate
recommendations to the Board on the appropriate remedial actions
to be made. The risk committee will meet on a monthly basis, or
more regularly if a meeting is requested by any risk committee
member.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Company is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
listed equity securities and investment in private equities which are
classified in the statement of financial position as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss in Note 16 as at the end of the
reporting period.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below demonstrates management’s best
estimate of the effect on the loss and net assets attributable to equity
holders of the Company due to a reasonably possible change in
equity indices or fair values of the listed investments with all other
variables held constant. In practice, the actual trading results may
differ from the sensitivity analysis below and the difference could be
material.

Listed equity securities

The Company's investments in listed equity securities are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of
the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest points
during the years were as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

28. BB EREERBRREE

IR RE R ()

A THREIMIREEMBEGBEE
FRETENERT  EEEHRFZEH
FETREZATFESEBAEESHTE
AABEDRFEARIGEREREEFE
FRER & EM[G - EEEF  BEREXS
BRUNGETNNHRELTEMAE
ERFEEKXN -

L EF

AR 2 F ISR E DR EEY
R LT -

FAZMEPRRNKOARH A EEKRMHE
RBREF - THBHFRSANTISRERE
g URERZFESENES RRE
o h
31 December 2024 High/low
2024512 A31H B/ &

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BE-BEEH

20,059.95 23,241.74/14,794.16

31 December 2023
2023412 A31H

High/low
=1

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BE—BEEH

17,047.39 22,700.85/15,972.31
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued)
Listed equity securities (Continued)

2024

28.

B35 R B B

BEEERE (E)
LR (E)
2024 %

% of reasonable
possible change
of the relevant

BEREGR

Change in loss
and net assets

Relevant market index Beta benchmark index (before tax effect)
HEEEESEE FEREEFELSH
HETSEY s AR BN E 2t (BRBLFE L AT
HK$
BT
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index & — B4 5 & 0.00 +10 +0
2023 2023
% of reasonable
possible change Change in loss
of the relevant and net assets
Relevant market index Beta benchmark index (before tax effect)
JFEF%%?ETE%(AEE EEREEFEE
HETISEH £ B ER (BTG 2RI
HK$
BT
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index ~ & — 184 H 0.013 +10 +4,899
Private equities HERE

At 31 December 2024, the loss (2023: loss) before tax would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$2,470,000 for the private
equities (2023: HK$3,542,900) should the fair values of the
investments increase/decrease by 10% (2023: 10%).
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the
Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected.
To limit this risk, management monitors the Company’s liquidity
position from time to time.

The Company aims to maintain sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements by the ongoing monitoring of cash positions and
future cash flows. The following table summarises the maturity
profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within six months equal their
carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting is insignificant. The
table also analyses the maturity profile of the Company’s financial
assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in order to provide a
complete view of the Company’s contractual commitments and
liquidity.

The maturity grouping of financial liabilities is based on the
remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of
when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated to the earliest
period in which the Company can be required to pay.

Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss into
maturity groupings is based on the expected date on which these
assets will be realised. For other assets, the analysis into maturity
groupings is based on the remaining period from the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, if earlier, the
expected date on which the assets will be realised.

Notes to Financial Statements
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 28. IBEREEEEREE
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) nEELEE (F)
At 31 December 2024 72024512 A31H
Contractual Total
Lessthan 3o less than 1to Nofixed  undiscounted rrying
On demand 3months 12 months 5 years maturity  cash flows amount
3fERE BER  RHARR
REX  OW3ER SRR 1258 388 RERE  REAE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$

An An A An A B An

Other payables and accounts AMERFERETER 3,459,664 - - - - 3459664 3459664

Lease liabilties figef - 200,000 = - = 200,000 197,899

Amount due to a relsted party ERERAE 600,000 - - - - 600,000 600,000

Totalfinandialliabltes SHAREE 4,059,664 200,000 - - - 4259664 4257563
At 31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

Contractual Total

lessthan 3 toless than Tto Nofied  undiscounted aning

On demand 3 months 12 months 5 years maturity cash flows amount

3ERE BEE  A0AFE

BEX  OI3ER ORnER 1358 548 GenE  BE4E

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

A AT o A B A BT

Other payables and accounts AfEATERESER 2847326 - - - - 8436 2847306

Lease liablfes HEER - 405,840 925,872 200,000 - BT 1451930

Amount due to a related party ERERE 1,100,000 - - - - 1700000 1,100,000

Total financial liabiltes SHAREE 3947326 405,840 925872 200,000 - 5419038 540525
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 28.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
and future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates.

The majority of the Company’s interest rate exposure arises from
cash and cash equivalents and margin accounts payable to brokers.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s
profit or loss for the year to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity of the
profit or loss for the year (before tax) is the effect of the assumed
changes in interest rates on:

- The net interest for one year, based on the net cash position
held at the end of the reporting period.

- Changes in fair value of investments for the year, based on
revaluing fixed rate financial assets at the end of the reporting
period.

In practice, the actual trading results may differ from the below
sensitivity analysis and the difference could be significant.

MHERAREEERERBE

2= = Bz

MERREERIANKKEZTEN
BEREE T IH N R E MR R

ARTABHAEERKARE KRS
SEREHELARELER -

TEHS ERE AR BRSTRE -
ARTAFEEREHFIRN AT oA R
B BT - A E 1838 (BBAT) BUR
ERENENEREDY T EEOY
B8 -

i

— ERHREMRAEFEREMNZ —
FRFSFE -

—  ERBEMREEERLMEEY
FRREDTERD -
FE L EBRRSEEA LR TS

B AmMER B EERRRE -

Sensitivity  Sensitivity of

of interest changes in
Change in income/ fair value of
Net exposure basis point (expense)  investments
FBBA/ RENTE
FEB HE2y (XH)SBE ZINGERE
HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT
2024 2024 F
Cash and cash equivalents BekRe%E 13,007,593 +50 165,038 -
2023 2023
Cash and cash equivalents RekRe%E 17,309,428 +50 +86,547 -
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Since
the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the
Board of Directors considers the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk to be minimal; as such no sensitivity analysis has been
presented in these financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the Company by failing to discharge an
obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is monitored by the
Investment Manager on an ongoing basis.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash
equivalents, promissory notes and investments placed with DBS
Bank Limited, Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited and Bank of
Communication Trustee Limited, which management believes is of
high credit quality.

The credit risk on amounts due from brokers is limited because most
of the receivable amounts are from the investments sold which will
be settled shortly after trade date.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations without taking into
account of any collateral held as at the reporting date in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as disclosed in the statement of financial position.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 28. IKERMEEREEREE ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management BEXRER

As a result of the ability to issue and repurchase shares, the capital of BRANRRAETREBRRGD 26

the Company can vary depending on subscriptions to the Company RRAMEREREAR QR RE R ER M
and repurchases by the Company. The primary objectives of the U - ARNBEARNEER Y TEHEZTIRE
Company’s capital management are to safeguard the Company’s RABZHBEEREFTERREBR
ability to continue as a going concern and to invest the capital in ERMMKREBAREAERR 2IRER
investments meeting the description and risk exposure indicated ANERZREN - HEBEARBARAT]
in the Company’s prospectus. The Investment Manager manages WREERRBEREEARAINER -
the capital of the Company in accordance with the Company’s RARTEINBHEINEERBZRALR o

investment objectives and policies. The Company is not subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

29. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 29. EHHKEE
There is no significant event after the reporting period. WMERETEBEESKEIR -

30. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30. B %Rk AVHLE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by KEAFEHRRE N 202563 F27HEE =
the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025. GHE R -
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Summary of Financial Information

BB E

31 December 2024 2024%12H31H

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Company ARFZAAATRFEE 7 EEREENAE
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited #1 2 (B D P KEZMERE) Hylw T
financial statements is set out below:

RESULTS E 4

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
BE204%  HZE202F  HBRNE  HE021F  EHE00%F
12A31H 1273318 12A31H 1273318 12A318

LEE LEE ItEE IHEE TFE
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
REVENUE WA 759,920 126,339 3,116,109 257,989 3,417,096
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRI ATEE (28,978,531)  (52,463,843)  (52,745,075) (4,980,239)  (31,106,691)
Income Tax gt - - - - -
LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE BEKEALE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO ADAILBERBAA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE ERFERER
COMPANY (28,978,531)  (52,436,843)  (52,745,075) (4,980,239)  (31,106,691)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 2023%F 20225 20215 20204
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT B BT BT BT
TOTAL ASSETS BEGE 65,116,985 95243209 149,407,330 115,829,000 77,610,666
TOTAL LIABILITIES BfEaE (4,257,563) (5,405,256) (7,132,534) (2,093,007) (6,497,953)

60,859,422 89,837,953 142,274,796 113,735,993 71,112,713
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